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an Yue Technology Holdings Limited

(the “Company”) was founded in 1979 and

was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited in 1997. The Company and
its subsidiaries’ (collectively called the “Group” or “Man
Yue Tech”) core businesses are the manufacture and
sale of high technology electronic components, including
Aluminum Electrolytic Capacitors (“E-Caps”), Conductive
Polymer Aluminum Solid Capacitors (“Polymer Caps”) and
other innovative electronic components.

The Group offers a full range of E-Caps products
which satisfy the needs of global customers, consisting
mainly of the world’s leading information technology,
telecommunications, electrical and electronic brands.
In 2006, the Group launched an innovative electronic
component known as the Polymer Cap, and has advanced
to be a major global vendor. The Group continued its
pioneering course by unveiling a new type of capacitor in
2009 — Electric Double Layer Capacitors (“EDLC"), which
acts as an energy storage device in electrical or electronic
products.

Over the years, the Group has fostered creativity and
inventiveness among the well-trained and highly qualified
research and development (“R&D") professionals who have
enabled the Group to develop new and groundbreaking
products.

As the key manufacturer of E-Caps and Polymer Caps,
the Group owns the renowned SAMXON® and X-CON®
brands, both are respected brands for their advanced

-

technology and superior quality, backed by the Group’s
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strong R&D capabilities and established global network.
Enhancing their market attraction, all of the Group’s
products comply with European Union’s Directives on
Restriction of the Use of the Certain Hazardous Substances
in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“RoHS"”) and
environmental protection requirements specific to different
global markets.

Man Yue Tech is headquartered in Hong Kong and
operates state-of-the-art E-Caps manufacturing facilities
in Dongguan, Wuxi and Jiangxi of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), with a total production capacity of
over 1 billion pieces per month. The Group owns three
aluminum foil factories located in Qingyuan, Urumgi and
Yaan of the PRC producing aluminum foil for its own
consumption. The Group has distribution offices located
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, complemented by
worldwide distribution channels.

Man Yue Tech is fully committed to environmental
sustainability for both products and operations. All
products are halogen free and complied with RoHS. In
addition, all production facilities of the Group conform
to local environmental regulations and obtained relevant
certification where appropriate. Not content to passively
observe regulations, the Group is actively pursuing
opportunities to directly contribute to environmental
protection. The Group introduced and continued o

develop solutions for enhancing energy efficiency, such 'as‘5

capacitors found in LED lamps and high-efficiency lighting
and new storage devices for use in environmentally friendly
products. The Group remains steadfast in its support of
environmental protection, consistent with its commitment
to be a good corporate citizen.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Kee Chor Lin (Chairman)

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene (Managing Director)
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley

Yeung Yuk Lun (shall resign on 12 April 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P.

Lo Kwok Kwei, David

Mar, Selwyn

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mar, Selwyn (Chairman)

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P.
Lo Kwok Kwei, David

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Lo Kwok Kwei, David (Chairman)

Kee Chor Lin

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P. (Chairman)
Kee Chor Lin

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene

Lo Kwok Kwei, David

Mar, Selwyn

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yeung Yuk Lun (shall resign on 12 April 2016)
Ng Sui Yin (shall be appointed on 12 April 2016)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

:.q ong Konag) Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
AEE R

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
16/F., Yiko Industrial Building
10 Ka Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08 Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

CORPORATE WEBSITE

http://www.manyue.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

E-mail: ir@manyue.com

STOCK CODE
00894
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

i S ES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Operating Results

Revenue
Gross profit
EBITDA

Net (loss)/profit

Per Share Data
(Loss)/earnings per share-basic
Total dividend per share

Net assets per share

Financial Position
Total assets
Net assets

Financial Ratios
Gross profit to revenue
EBITDA to revenue

Net (loss)/profit to revenue

Return on equity
Net debt to equity

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT

BET-A=T—HILEE

QA A
REEE

A

7

RETFIBZ - B - 78
K#HRIZ R ([EBITDA])

(B518),aFlFE

BREH
Bik(ER), /B -EA
BiERE
BREERE

BIERIR
BERE
BEFE

Bt =
EFMEBRAB DL
EBITDAIEIRAE Sk
(B518),EFIFRIEBA
Botk
BABRE S
EEFRHERA O

2015
—E-EF
HK$'000
TR
974,421
175,040

83,942
(45,838)

TR
2,553,022
1,396,260

% changes

increase/

2014 (decrease)
—E-NE FAKEE GR)
HK$'000 %
TET Bt

1,186,967 (17.91)
253,362 (30.91)

175,104 (52.06)
43,836 NERNA

%
TERAN/A
TEFANA

(10.46)

TAT
2,749,435
1,569,145

%
(15.49)
(41.89)

TNERNA
NEANA
14.79




Financial Highlights (Continued)
MHERE (&)

For the year ended 31 December
HET-_A=+—HBItFE
HK$' million B &7
1,540.2

1,391.7
1,322.2

1,187.0

974.4

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=+—HIFE

HKS$' million BEB7T

235.1
226.4

210.2

175.1

83.9

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

For the year ended 31 December
HET-A=1+—HItFE
HKS$' million &&787T

361.5

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

As at 31 December
®+=A=+—H
HK$' cents Il

3212 327.4
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EEHE

The financial year ended 31 December 2015 was still challenging
for many global electronic enterprises, including major players in
the E-Caps and Polymer Caps industries. In addition to the weak
demand of electronic components during the Year, the delaying
effect of depreciation of Japanese Yen had significant impact to
the selling price of our key products.

The Group's sales revenue declined by 17.9% to HK$974,421,000
in 2015, which was in line with the poor performance of our
major competitors. The gross profit margin dropped as a result of
the intense pricing pressure imposed by our competitors during
the Year. However, the Group’s EBITDA continued to maintain at a
satisfactory position with our conservative cash flow and financial
management. The net gearing ratio increased slightly to 32.6%
as at 31 December 2015. It was mainly due to diminution of the
value of PRC-based fixed assets resulted from the depreciation of
Renminbi during the Year.

SAVE OIL, SAVE MINERALS,
FRESH AIR, GREEN FUTURE,

TOMORROW

STARTS HERE

Ms. Kee Chor Lin
LRELt
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHREE)

As one of the key global suppliers of major electronic components
including E-Caps and Polymer Caps, the Group continues the
investment in ESS product family since 2007. The Group acquired
the land use rights of a piece of land located in Qingyuan High-
tech Industrial Development Zone of Guangdong Province in the
PRC. It will be used for the expansion of production capacities of
the ESS products (including EDLC, EDLC modules and Powerfilm
Capacitors) in the coming years.

The development of ESS products is encouraging, taking into
account of the continuing commitment of the PRC government
in the environment protection and new energy saving-related
industries and sectors. This aligns with the Group’s overall strategy
of developing green energy products and multi-product platform
with increasing sales mix of such high-technology segment in the
next couple of years. With our strong material science research
technology and ready-to-expand production capacities built in the
past years, we are confident that the Group can capture most of
the opportunities in this particular emerging market segment.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all
of our shareholders, business partners, bankers and customers for
their continuing support to the Group. | would also like to thank
my fellow directors, the management team and our staff for their
dedication and commitment in contributing to the success of the
Group.

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& O

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
o Revenue dropped by 17.9% to HK$974,421,000 (2014:
HK$1,186,967,000)

. Gross profit margin was 18.0% (2014: 21.3%)

o EBITDA of HK$83,942,000, representing an EBITDA margin
of 8.6% (2014: 14.8%)

° Loss for the Year was HK$45,838,000 (2014: Profit of
HK$43,836,000)

o Net debt to equity ratio slightly increased to 32.6%,
compared with 28.4% as at 31 December 2014

. Net assets per share of HK$2.93, compared with HK$3.27
per share as at 31 December 2014

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The sales revenue of the Group for the Year dropped to
HK$974,421,000 (2014: HK$1,186,967,000), representing a
decrease of 17.9%, as compared with that of last year. It was
mainly attributable to the intense pricing pressure imposed by
the competitors as a result of the depreciation of Japanese Yen
and the decline in the global demand for electronic components
during the Year.

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$175,040,000 (2014
HK$253,362,000), representing a drop of 30.9%, compared
with that of last year. It was mainly due to the increase in
manufacturing costs in Mainland China, in addition to the
general decrease in selling price during the Year. The Group has
undergone keen cost control programs including automating the
production processes to stabilise the gross profit margin in the
second half of the Year.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEWED (&)

During the Year, the Group recognised a loss arising from
changes in the fair values of derivative financial instruments of
HK$4,647,000 (2014: HK$5,963,000). The derivative financial
instruments concerned referred to certain long term interest rate
swap contracts entered into by the Group in 2009 and 2010 with
the intention to hedge against the Group’s future borrowing
costs. The Group had to account for the decrease in the fair
values of these financial instruments in the consolidated income
statement at the year end. This item did not affect the cash flows
of the Group.

The Group’s EBITDA amounted to HK$83,942,000 (2014:
HK$175,104,000), representing an EBITDA margin of 8.6% (2014:
14.8%).

Loss for the Year amounted to HK$45,838,000 (2014: Profit of
HK$43,836,000). The Board has resolved not to recommend final
dividend for the Year (2014: 1.0 HK cent per share).

REERAFEENERATESM T ERAABERAT
EE4 2 [E5184,647,0008 7L ( —Z — U4 : 5,963,000
BIL) c BRTESM I AREAEEN _TThEF
EZZ—ZFIIUzETROFREHEL - 5 7Y
SRAREE Y RIRMEERA - REBBRAREEERE
BZESHIAZ AR BEREBARZERA KEERA -
HHEE W T HEAEE RS ©

7K £2 [B EBITDA /4 83,942,00078 7T ( — & — PO £ :
175,104,0007% 7T ) * MEBITDALL R A8.6% (—Z—M
F:14.8%) °

AN JE B9 18 /45,838,000 7T ( Z B — P04 ¢ % A
43,836,000/ L) - EECERATERREAFE
ZARBBE(ZZE—F : FIR1.08(L) -

E-Caps and Polymer Caps factory in Dongguan of the PRC
FEREREREAERED TERSHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market overview

The global demand for E-Caps and Polymer Caps dropped in
2015 as a result of the slowdown of global economy especially
in Mainland China. The electronic component sector had been
particularly affected due to the delay in the launching of new
product models by our key customers during the Year, which then
reduced the demand in the consumer electronic sectors. On the
other end of the spectrum, the large-scale E-Caps manufacturers
were also facing key challenges including currency fluctuation
and increasing manufacturing cost, especially the labor costs
in the PRC. This eroded the profitability and the operating
margins during the Year. The Group continues to be one of the
major suppliers of electronic components in the global market.
Our flagship brands — SAMXON® and X-CON® still maintain a
very strong market position in the niche market segment. The
competitive advantages of our high-quality products and the
stable supply of key raw materials, especially aluminum foils,
enable the Group to maintain its global market share. We expect
a recovery of sales momentum in the consumer electronic and
industrial sectors in next few years.

The PRC government continues its commitment in developing
new energy industries and related applications. We are one of
the very few suppliers in the world to supply such green energy
components including EDLC, EDLC modules and Powerfilm
Capacitors. The Group expects the global demand for these ESS
products will experience phenomenal growth in terms of volume
and spectrum of applications in the next few years. We are now
keen on expanding these market sectors via production capacity
expansion and continuing investment in R&D facilities to explore
new applications accordingly.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEET R ()

Operation review

The Group has successfully transformed from a single-product
platform into a key global supplier of several critical electronic
components including E-Caps, Polymer Caps, EDLC, EDLC
modules, Powerfilm Capacitors, MLPC, aluminum foils and
chemicals in the past few years. The ESS product series provides
a total solution for industrial power management and energy-
storage applications such as wind and solar power systems, new
energy transportation vehicles, escalators automatic rescue and
power backup devices, national grid resources utilization, energy
regeneration system for rail transportation, RTG port crane energy
regeneration system etc. It enhances our niche market position
for low-carbon emission and new energy-related applications. The
Group has successfully developed the second generation of super-
capacitors during the Year. We are in a position well prepared for
capturing the market potential of ESS products in the next few
years.

During the Year, the Group continued to enhance the efficiency
of production process and to strengthen internal control over
manufacturing costs and overhead in Mainland China. We have
been penetrating effectively into first-tier PRC domestic market
and key global electronic manufacturing segment in the past
few years. With strong commitment to improve the overall
competitiveness of our high-quality products and to continue
to adjust our sales strategy by focusing on niche customers
and products, we expect the contribution from our traditional
capacitors business and the ESS family series will be improving
gradually in the near future.

The Group made an announcement on 16 September 2014
that the Group acquired the land use rights of a piece of land
located in Qingyuan High-tech Industrial Development Zone of
Guangdong Province in the PRC. The Group considers the land for
the time being to be used for the future development of our new
energy saving and storage businesses, including but not limited
to research, development and the manufacture of EDLC, EDLC
modules, MLPC and Powerfilm Capacitors and other new energy
saving related products. The investment will be funded by internal
resources of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BRI (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total outstanding bank
borrowings amounted to HK$813,575,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$857,865,000) which comprised mainly bank loans and trade
finance facilities. The bank borrowings with maturities falling due
within one year and in the second to the fifth year amounted to
HK$505,477,000 and HK$308,098,000 respectively (31 December
2014: HK$505,646,000 and HK$352,219,000 respectively).

After deducting cash and cash equivalents of HK$347,797,000 (31
December 2014: HK$400,839,000) and time deposits over three
months of HK$11,936,000 (31 December 2014: HK$12,676,000),
the Group's net borrowing amounted to HK$453,842,000 (31
December 2014: HK$444,350,000). Shareholders’ equity as at
31 December 2015 was HK$1,391,978,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,563,854,000). Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio
was 32.6% (31 December 2014: 28.4%).

During the Year, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to HK$48,240,000. This represented loss
before tax of HK$37,396,000 after adjustments for non-cash
items, including adding back depreciation and amortisation of
HK$91,124,000, adding the share of results of joint ventures
and an associate of HK$752,000, deducting the net changes
in working capital of HK$1,791,000 and deducting other
adjustments of HK$4,449,000. The Group's net cash outflow from
investing activities for the Year amounted to HK$22,879,000,
which included purchases and prepayments for prepaid land
premium and property, plant and equipment of HK$25,682,000
and other cash inflow of HK$2,803,000.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE DN (E)

The Group's financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar remained pegged to the United
States dollar, there was no material exchange risk in this respect.
The Group continued to monitor its foreign exchange exposure
in Japanese Yen and Renminbi mainly by entering into forward
contracts. The Group’s long-term bank loan facilities were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest at
floating rates. Interest rate exposure was hedged by entering into
long-term interest rate swap contracts. Credit risk was hedged
mainly through credit insurance.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The global economy is still challenging in the coming years,
especially the reducing economic growth in Mainland China.
The Group expects several key challenges ahead including the
continuous increase in manufacturing costs, shorter product life
cycle of consumer electronic products and also volatile capital
market and currency fluctuation. With the Group’s three pillars
of product families: namely E-Caps, Polymer Caps and the ESS
products well in place, sales momentum will be picked up in
multiple dimensions in 2016 and beyond.

The PRC government continues the strategic move to boost the
development of key emerging new energy-related industries.
The Group's existing ESS product platform covers most of these
product segments including new energy, new materials, energy
saving, environmental protection and new energy vehicles. With
solid ongoing national policies in place, the Group believes that
it can capture such market opportunities through leveraging its
existing well-established, unique and diversified product platform
and adequate production capabilities in the next couple of years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BT R DM (E)

As one of the key global suppliers of E-Caps, Polymer Caps
and ESS products, the Group will continue to align its strategic
direction of strengthening its position as a main supplier of key
electronic components across all sectors including the new energy-
related applications. Moreover, our bolstering R&D capabilities and
the collaboration with key leading universities provides a channel
for the Group to penetrate extensively into the faster-than-
expected growing renewable energy industry in the near future.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 70 staff in Hong
Kong (31 December 2014: 75) and employed a total work force of
2,720 (31 December 2014: 2,846) inclusive of all the staff in the
PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s remuneration policy is built
on the principle of equitability with incentive-based, motivating,
performance oriented and market-competitive remuneration
packages for its employees. Remuneration packages are normally
reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary, other staff benefits
include provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage
and performance-based bonuses.
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Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei, David

EERSREEAERE

Kee Chor Lin (Mrs. Chan), aged 67, is the co-founder of the
Group. She was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company in October 2008. Mrs. Chan is the
leader of the Group for corporate development, overall planning,
strategies and policies making. Mrs. Chan is at present a director
of several major operating subsidiaries of the Group and also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mrs. Chan is one of the well-
known industrialists in Hong Kong and possesses over 30 years of
experience in the business of electronic components. She is the
mother of Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, the Managing Director
and an Executive Director of the Group and Ms. Chan Lok Yan,
Lorraine, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun
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Mr. Wong Ching Ming, Stanley
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Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
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Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies (Continued)

EENEREEAEEBE (&)

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, aged 40, joined the Group in 1998 and
was appointed as an Executive Director in December 2007 and as
the Managing Director of the Group in October 2008. Mr. Chan
is responsible for overseeing the business development, policies
making and implementation of the Group. He is also a director of
several major operating subsidiaries of the Group and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Applied Science (majored in Electronic and
Electrical Engineering) from the University of British Columbia
in Canada. He has over 18 years of experience in the industry
of electronic components. He received the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong in 2008. Mr. Chan is the son of Mrs. Chan
and the brother of Ms. Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine.

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley, aged 58, joined the Group in 2003
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in January 2011. Mr. Wong is also the Business Development
Director of the Group. He is now primarily responsible for
managing the global sales, marketing strategies and operations
and overall management of factory operations of the Group.
He has over 25 years of experience in sales and marketing field
and had held a senior management position in an internationally
well-known information technology company. Mr. Wong holds a
Master of Science degree and a Bachelor of Science (Aeronautical
Engineering) degree from the University of London’s Imperial
College of Science. Mr. Wong is also a director of certain
subsidiaries and an associate of the Company.

Yeung Yuk Lun, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Company Secretary of the Company in March 2013
and August 2013 respectively. He is also the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group. Mr. Yeung was the Financial Controller of
the Group from July 2007 to February 2010. He re-joined the
Group in November 2011 as the Chief Financial Officer and is
responsible for the Group’s financial planning, internal control
and management, regulatory compliance and investor relations
functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held senior
management positions in different listed companies in Hong Kong.
He has extensive experience in auditing, financial and treasury
management, information technology, executive management
as well as business development. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies (Continued)

EENEREEANEEBE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P., aged 61, has over 29 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. Dr. Li is a member of
the National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and the President of Hong Kong Economic & Trade
Association Ltd. and the President of The Chinese Manufactures’
Association of Hong Kong. He holds a Ph.D. degree in Economics
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration. Dr. Li was
awarded The Ten Outstanding Young Persons in 1991 and the
Young Industrialists of Hong Kong in 1993. He is currently an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of each of Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (“Oriental
Watch”) and Midas International Holdings Limited (“Midas”) and
the Company (all of which were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Dr. Li is also a member of
the remuneration committee of Oriental Watch and the Company,
a member of the nomination committee of Midas and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Lo Kwok Kwei, David, aged 56, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lo holds the
degrees of Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Jurisprudence from
the University of New South Wales, Australia. He was admitted as
a solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia
in 1984. Mr. Lo has been a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong since 1987. He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for over 27 years and is a partner in a law firm in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lo is currently an independent non-executive director
of eSun Holdings Limited and ENM Holdings Limited (all of which
were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited).
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies (Continued)

EENEREEAEEBE (&)

Mar, Selwyn, aged 80, graduated from the London School
of Economics, University of London, is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Mar
has been active in commercial and industrial undertakings over
the past 30 years. He is currently a director of Nexia Charles Mar
Fan Limited. He is an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company, China
Everbright International Limited and Minmetals Land Limited (all
of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Mar was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of China Kingstone Mining
Holdings Limited (was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong) in July 2015, and resigned from the
office in December in the same year. In respect of public services,
he was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly known as the “Hong Kong Society
of Accountants”) in 1991, a member of the Appeals Panel of the
Securities and Futures Commission and a member of Board of
Governors of the Chinese International School. He is an Honorary
Fellow of the Lingnan University. Mr. Mar is also a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, aged 38, is the Business Control
Director of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 2001
and is actively involving in the setting of the Group’s business
strategies, reengineering the Group’s business processes and
the establishment of business control systems. She has extensive
experience in marketing, business operations and information
systems management. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is the daughter of
Mrs. Chan and the sister of Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene.

Hsu Dau Shin, aged 60, is the General Manager of the Group’s
manufacturing facility in Dongguan. Mr. Hsu joined the Group
in 2014. He is responsible for the management and operation
of the manufacturing facility of the Group in Dongguan. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the chief executive officer of a well
known Taiwan electronic company and led it to be listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of New Hampshire, United
States.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies (Continued)

EENEREEANEEBE (&)

Lui Man Lung, Johnny, aged 45, is the Sales General Manager
of the Group. Mr. Lui joined the Group in 1996 and is mainly
responsible for the development of the Group’s business in
the Greater China and Taiwan region. He has over 21 years of
experience in the sales and marketing fields. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong.

Pan Su Qing, aged 54, is the Vice Chief Engineer of the Group’s
manufacturing facility in Dongguan. Ms. Pan joined the Group
in 1996. She is responsible for product development, product
design, technical support and product cost management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in the research &
development department of a well known state-owned National
4321 Factory and engaged in the development of new aluminum
electrolytic capacitor products for commercial customers
and military uses. She graduated from the Nan Chang Radio
Technological School, majored in electronics component and
material in 1983.

Peng Shu Hong, aged 41, is the General Manager of the Group’s
Sichuan and Qingyuan aluminum foil manufacturing business. Mr.
Peng joined the Group in 1997 with the responsibility of managing
the production, quality control and research & development. He
has over 17 years of experience in operation management field.

Wai Ching Han, Doris, aged 56, is the Operation Director
of the Group. Ms. Wai joined the Group in March 2001.
She is responsible for the Group’s strategic human resources
management and general administration. Ms. Wai has over 23
years human resources and administration experience gained in
global corporations. She holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Business
Administration (Human Resources Management) from the RMIT
University of Australia. She is also a professional member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Wan Wah, aged 45, is the Assistant Business Development
Director of the Group. Ms. Wan rendered her services from
1994 to 2013 and re-joined the Group in 2015. She is mainly
responsible for the development of the Group’s business. She has
over 22 years of experience in the sales and marketing fields and
has successfully led sales teams in the development of new and
potential markets for the Group. She holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Sydney, Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEREE

The Board of the Company and management are committed
to uphold high standard of corporate governance practices in
order to enhance the performance of the Group. The principles
of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasise
on an effective Board for leadership and control, sound business
ethics and integrity in all business activities, transparency and
accountability to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has adopted the code provisions as its own code of corporate
governance practices with the exception of the following
deviation:

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term. Currently, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting under bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures had been taken to ensure that corporate governance
practices of the Company were in line with the code provisions for
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by the
Directors of the Company. After having made specific enquiry by
the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had fully complied
with the Model Code throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TRELRE(E)

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors and three
INEDs. The number of INED represents more than one-third of the
Board which comply with the requirement under rule 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules. Their names are identified in various corporate
communications and in all announcements. The biographical
details and the relationship among the members of the Board
are disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographies” on pages 15 to 19 of this Annual
Report. Also, the Board established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

The Composition of the Board

The Directors believe that the current composition of the Board
reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and the
effective leadership. The INEDs of the Company are experts in
various business sectors. Under rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, at
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the INEDs
of the Company complies with rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules and
can ensure independence and objectivity and provide checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company.

The Chairman and the Managing Director

The Board believes that clear division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director is crucial to the effective
running of the Board and the development of the Group. Ms.
Kee Chor Lin (“Mrs. Chan”) and Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene
are the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
respectively. Their roles and duties are separate and distinct.
Mrs. Chan, as the Chairman, takes up the challenging role of
leading the Board to develop and formulate strategic business
development plans whilst Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, as the
Managing Director, is to implement the policies and answerable to
the Board for the operations and management of the Group. Mrs.
Chan is the mother of Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBE(E)

Resignation of an Executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer and change of the Company
Secretary

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun has tendered his resignation from the offices
of Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary with effect from 12 April 2016. Mr. Ng Sui Yin shall be
appointed as the Company Secretary on the same day following
the resignation of Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun.

Proceedings of Meetings

The Chairman is responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each Board meeting in consultation with all Directors
and the Company Secretary of the Company.

Prior notice of each Board meeting is given to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance of all regular Board meetings and the
Directors are invited to include matters of their special concerns
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing agenda for each Board meeting. Draft
agenda for each Board meeting is circulated to all Directors to
enable them to include other matters in the agenda. The agenda
and accompanying meeting papers are then sent in full to all
Directors at least 3 days in advance or within reasonable time prior
to the relevant Board meetings.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded the matters considered
by the Board in details. The minutes of all Board meetings and all
other committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are available upon prior appointment for inspection by any
Directors, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who are entitled
to have access to such information.

The Directors are reminded to declare any conflicts of interest at
the Board meetings and to abstain from voting and be excluded
from counting as quorum in that meeting whenever there are
potential or actual conflicts of interest arising.

Directors’ Training

Every newly appointed Director of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction package to ensure
that he or she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operation and business and the relevant statues, common
laws, the Listing Rules, legal and regulatory requirements and
governance policies. The Company Secretary also provides the
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board
from time to time.
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Besides, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Specific in-house training seminars were organised for
all Directors in January and March 2015 to update the Board the
latest development and knowledge on market misconduct and
risk management. A summary of trainings received and seminars
or conferences attended by Directors from for the Year is as
follows:

Directors

Executive Directors HITEE

Kee Chor Lin 4TI

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene R

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley FHERA

Yeung Yuk Lun e

Independent BUHHITEE
Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEHT

Lo Kwok Kwei, David EEE

Mar, Selwyn BHiEE

AN REBNGEEZREE2EBFEREEE I
H MM R AR SR NG - (HEEL2E 2 BTER
HEINER=—E—RAF—AR=A8T URESE
RETBAETANBREEZ &HER - EERA
FEBEIEIARHEEERSZ 2 MBNT

Type of trainings
EIEE

Seminars or  Corporate
In-house conferences events or
training  or forums visits Reading
BEREE LREER
ARSI R E R R
v 4 v v
4 4 v v
v 4 v v
v 4 v 4
4 v v
v 4 v v
v 4 v 4

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Bye-laws of the Company contain provisions for the
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors.

Appointment of Directors

Subject to the bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Directors shall be elected or appointed in the first place at the
statutory meeting of the members and thereafter at the annual
general meeting. However, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to
authorisation by the members in general meeting, as an addition
to the existing Board subject to bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s

RE ERRERES
ARBZARMABBERENERET BERRRLESZ
fiR3C

ZTES

RIEARAR 2 ARIHAIES6()K - EREFENKRE
EEEZE ERERNBERBFAEG LIERNERT -
R RBARBZ ARMARIESQR - EFEHA
BTR REEMFREEEAALRES  UWRHE
EETERFEBEREBRAG LERRIEARBE
ERIIMEKE -
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Re-election of Directors

Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that any
Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to bye-
law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the annual general meeting.

Removal of Directors

Under bye-law 86(4) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members
may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution,
remove a Director at any time before the expiration of his or her
period of office provided that the notice of any such meeting
convened for the purpose of removing a Director shall contain a
statement of the intention so to do and be served on such Director
not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such meeting,
such Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his or
her removal.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Group adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 1 August 2013.
A summary of this policy, together with the implementation are
disclosed as below.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board of the Company. To achieve a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company encourages increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing an appropriate composition of the
Board, the diversity of the Board has been considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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Implementation of Board Diversity Policy EESZ Ut BRZEIT

The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the Board 124 ZBE€RE Ty 2 TtAERNE=SH
from diversified angles and summarised as follows: B

Education
background

BEEE

b

Overseas
Hong Kong

Age group
Fiil R
35-45: 2
46-65: 3
= 66: 2

Designation
BifE
ED A1TEE : 4

INED 837 JEFH1TEESS « 3

BOARD DIVERSITY
EEgT Tk

INED : Independent Non-executive Director

ED  : Executive Director
INED : B 3EHITES
ED HTESF

Length of
service (year)

Female ?

Professional
experience

Professional associated
HXME : 6
Entrepreneur 125 : 1
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

The Chairman leads the Board to formulate corporate mission,
visions and policies of the Group and to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues.

All EDs take an active interest in the affairs of the Company
with a good understanding of the business, and play important
roles in the daily operations and management of the Company,
whilst all INEDs participate in the Board meetings and bring their
independent views and judgments on various issues.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed with a formal letter
of appointment setting out the terms and conditions of their
respective appointment. Prior to their respective appointment,
each of the INEDs has submitted a written confirmation to the
Company and the Stock Exchange confirming their independence
and has undertaken to inform the Company and the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change
of circumstances which may affect their independence.

INEDs provide the Group with a wide range of skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through their regular
attendance at various committee meetings and to provide
operations on the affairs of the Company. They bring independent
opinion and judgment on the strategy and policies to ensure that
the interests of all shareholders are taken into account.

The Company reviews annually and obtains confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs during their respective
terms of appointment. During the Year, the Company received
written confirmation from each of the INEDs his independence
with reference to rule 3.13 of the regarding Listing Rules.
Based on the confirmations, the Company considers that the
all INEDs are independent, in compliance with the Listing Rules
requirements.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

As mentioned above, the Company has made specific enquiry
to all Directors and all of them confirmed that they had fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the Year.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to
indemnify the Directors and senior executives from any losses,
claims, damages, liabilities and expenses, including without
limitation, any proceedings brought against them, arising from
the performance of his or her duties pursuant to his or her
appointment under his or her respective service agreement
entered into with the Company. The current policy has been
renewed and shall be under regular review.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
appropriate recommendations to the Board,;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Model Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the operations of the Group, the Board delegated
certain responsibilities to the senior management team of the
Company, including the day-to-day operations of the Group. Such
senior management team is accounted for their performance to
the Board.

During the Year, EDs frequently met and discussed with the senior
management team in order to maintain an effective feedback
system and enable the Group to react to changes or problems
quickly and efficiently. The Board shall review its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority regularly to ensure
that such delegations are appropriate in view of the Company's
prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting system is
in place.

Each Director is free to seek advice from and has access to the
Company’s senior management team independently.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All the committees are empowered by the Board
under their own terms of reference which have been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and are
available for inspection by the shareholders of the Company upon
request made to the Company Secretary.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is comprised of three INEDs, namely:

Mr. Mar, Selwyn (Chairman)
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei, David
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The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has
extensive commercial experience and the Audit Committee has
a suitable mix of expertise in commercial, financial and legal
sectors and that the composition and establishment of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible to assist the Board
in providing an independent view on the effectiveness of the
financial process and internal control system of the Group. It is
empowered by the Board and its responsibilities and powers are
set forth in the terms of reference. The committee members shall
meet at least twice every year to consider the interim and final
results prepared by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee met four times, together
with an additional meeting with external auditor for special
audit planning. The attendance of individual Directors at the
Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 34 and page 31
respectively of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Year:

1. Reviewed the financial reports for the year ended 31
December 2014 and for the interim period ended 30
June 2015
The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 and the unaudited interim financial
information for the interim period ended 30 June 2015. It
was of the opinion that such financial statements complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules
and the relevant legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures had been made.
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Reviewed and recommended to the Board for the EHYHEEEEEEEOR KBS HED

appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the EXFARDTAREE Z INEZEET

external auditor of the Company for the Year

The Audit Committee reviewed and considered the EZZEeDEBNTEERTREEESH

appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") EE ([ & EROKE D FTARRRIAREE 250

as the external auditor of the Company for the IBAZEAT - EXE B e NC EMME ZFKE

Year. It also reviewed the remuneration payable to ST EIS AT  ANE E AR 2 AR TS T e S~

PricewaterhouseCoopers, for the services provided during 2T

the Year as follows:

Fees paid/

payable

Services rendered by External Auditor INEE R BB 1R it 2 RS B BN
HK$'000

BT

Audit services ZERTS 1,525
Non-audit services (Note) FERZERTS (H77) 427
Total “Et 1,952

The Audit Committee reflected its view to the Board that EZLZEGCEREFTERT  HRRENAR

the remuneration payable to the Company’s external AONBRZEE e 2B ATEE - MAF

auditor was reasonable and fair in all circumstances and EAINEZBRIHEANRERELEERER

there had been no major disagreement between the DU o

external auditor and the management of the Company

during the Year.

Note: the fee paid for non-audit services including review of Mzt : BIERBRB G2 ERRERE T B
interim financial information, work performed on the BER  RAEENSEELMETZT
preliminary announcement of results of the Group and PERTABA RS »
tax compliance services.

Reviewed the internal audit work A EBEZ TEMRE

In connection with the internal control review conducted
in the Year, the Audit Committee periodically reviewed
the internal audit work and had regular meetings with
the internal auditor of the Company to follow up on
the findings being identified in the assessment reports
prepared by the internal auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee members were of the view that the key
areas of the Company’s internal control system had been
~ reasonably imple i
..{T:T‘-r;q‘.. B

e
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4, Audit planning for the year of 2016

The Audit Committee held an additional meeting for the
special purpose of audit planning with external auditor,
in which the meeting also welcomed the attendance of
any Director who had either expertise, or special interest,
in accounting, financial and auditing matters. Individual
attendance record of the relevant Director is shown below
(other than those shown separately, under the Attendance
at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and
Annual General Meeting):

4, —E-AFEREAE
EZER BRI RZENEIFE EIMNSIZEEN
RITING R ZRGARNELESR - B

RZ#EETmABEENBIRREER L
BE=hFE - FHEEZEARNLFELEB(RES
BEE  EXZRETANBRRBEAGHE
A BEHIERINDT

Audit Committee
meeting for 2016
audit planning

EREES
—REF
Directors REREER
Executive Director HITEE
Yeung Yuk Lun T8 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITEE
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEEL v
Lo Kwok Kwei, David FEE v
Mar, Selwyn BaAE v
Remuneration Committee FEMEES
The Remuneration Committee is made up of one ED and two  #@IZEE8e — L T28ENMABTEHTESA
INEDs, namely: K DRIA :
Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei, David (Chairman) BREESRE(TE)
Ms. Kee Chor Lin wEE L+
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEEL
The purposes of the Remuneration Committee are (i) determining  HEEES e SE(VAE L EHTEELRSHEIEAR

the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment); (ii) making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive dlrectors and (iii) establlshlng a transparent procedure

ZHEFIEN - BREMHE - RASEN RHE
(‘B IERERR Sk A% | P BT ol (o T B At 2 AR ARTAB 1B+ (i)
IFMTER 2 HFMAESSRMER + R>iFTZ—
EABREZRERF  UHIERMZSHMEER - £
SERFMNEE ST FEEHER  YRHEXRER
B EETRE -
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee met once and the
attendance of each individual Director is set out on page 34 of
this Annual Report. The following matters were dealt with in the
said meetings:

1. reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and

2. recommended the Board to approve directors’ fees for the
INEDs.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the
executive Directors and senior management whose names appear
in the “Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies” section
for the Year:

HK$

S
870

4,000,001-5,000,000
2,000,001-3,000,000
1,000,001-2,000,000
1-1,000,000

Total #&&1

RAFEAR - FMZEEBRTRGE  HRES
HEZEEER B HNAFRFEME - AT /L
MeHREEH

1. EHRMEEERRRERAR ZFHHIET

&

2. PHLEB SFMITEF EFRERNEFEIR
s -

TRIMIEERSRERBAESRE | —H2RTES
REMEEAERAFEEZ HMAR -

Number of persons
A

N = =N

11
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is composed of two EDs and three
INEDs, namely:

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy (Chairman)
Ms. Kee Chor Lin

Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene

Mr. Mar, Selwyn

Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei, David

The Nomination Committee is responsible for (i) assisting the Board
to run effectively and the Company can go through a formal,
fair and transparent process of reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the balance and effectiveness of the
Board in the light of the Board Diversity Policy, identifying the skills
needed and appointing those who can provide them to the Board;
(i) leading the process for the appointment of the Directors; and (iii)
identifying and nominating suitable candidates for appointment to
the Board. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee met once and the
attendance of each individual Director is set out on page 34 of
this Annual Report. The following matters were dealt with in the
said meeting:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition including the
skills, experience and diversity of the Board; and

2. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
succession planning for the Board and senior management.
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Attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee EZEE2&2H EEZESEERRREEK

Meetings and Annual General Meeting SHERL
Attendance record of individual Directors during the Year is as  ER|IZEENAEERN 2 ERIHEZENOT ¢
follows:

Number of Meetings attended/held
hE/BTERRY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual

Board Committee ~ Committee Committee General

meetings meetings meetings G Meeting

EEEE8E 2 BRZEE ¥MZEE REZEE RRBEE

Directors - =] =f ] -
Executive Directors: HTEE .

Ms. Kee Chor Lin (Note 1) feREL (M) 444 4/5 7n 17N 17

Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene (Note 1) BRFBLE () 404 4/5 - 11 11

Mr. Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TREHEL 4/4 - - - 0/1

Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun (Note 2) BEE L (ME2) 44 5/5 - - 1

Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BU##77EE :

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FABEL 444 5/5 17 11 1
Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei, David BRELE 4/4 5/5 n ”n n
Mr. Mar, Selwyn BRREE 3/4 5/5 - 1 11
Notes: B 5T -
1. Ms. Kee Chor Lin and Mr. Chan Yu Ching, Eugene attended 1. LERELLTRRFEAFEEEZZEGERIAER
the Audit Committee meetings as management representatives BRESNEBEZEZEESE -
requested by the Audit Committee.
2. Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun attended all the Audit Committee meetings as 2. BRBEERERZECERUNERINBRES D
the Chief Financial Officer requested by the Audit Committee. HEFEEREZEEEH -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements for each financial year, which shall give a
true and fair view of the financial status of the Group.

During the Year, the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to event or condition that might cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue its business.
Accordingly, the Board prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The Company commits to announce its interim and annual results
as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant
period and the financial year respectively as required by the Listing
Rules and discloses all such information as would enable the
shareholders of the Company to assess the performance, financial
position and prospects of the Group.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s internal audit department is led by the internal
audit manager with professional qualification. The internal audit
manager reports directly to the Audit Committee.

The internal audit department’s primary responsibilities include:

1. reviewing the work-flow and the implementation status
of the Group’s policies and procedures of all functional
departments;

2. reviewing the compliance status on rules and regulations

that are applied to the Group;

3. reviewing those areas of concern identified by the Audit
Committee or the management of the Company;

4. reporting significant issues related to the processes
for controlling the activities of the Group, including
potential improvements to those processes and providing
information concerning such issues to the Audit
Committee of the Company;

EEHUBHRRZER

EFEXRNERREVBERMBRRCELT T2
BER AP RRAEE 2 B T5IA0 -

RAEER BRI TANBERMERTHEEE -
BRSR AR A RERSE L L NBREARREMZ
FHEMR - At EFSERFHBELLEELEREAR
RAZEFAMERE -

AABEERBAV AR R RFEEERREER
BEBERTEREZ ETMRARED B AHEHHREF
BXRE - REEMARBER - UWEARRBRRE
REBZ KRR - MBI RATR

REREZ
RATZ AHEE b AR E AR N BT
BEE o NEEREEEEAEREAGER -

NEEZEP Iz ET2EEEE

1, EHAEEPTE BRI FI 2 BUR RAZF 2 T1E
MR EREE

2. EHEARAEE 2R NER 2 ARBER

3. BEHARRIZERZEGLEEEHR M

RS

4. ARABEREEEWRE
PREEBZEREEH @ B4

o B2 i A SR B 7S
BiE
ERREEEZEEEZE

BB B
B

Annual Report 2015 3R

35



36

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBE(E)

5. issuing periodic reports to the Audit Committee and
the Board summarising the results of audit activities and
substantive follow-up of audit recommendations; and

6. investigating significant suspected fraudulent activities
within the Group.

The internal audit department carries out annual risk assessment
on each identified audit area and devises an annual audit plan
according to the nature of business and risk exposures, and the
scope of work includes financial and operational reviews. The
audit plan is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises risk management is one of the key elements
to the success of the Company. The Group takes a pragmatic
approach to manage different risks to align with its business
development strategically. The management identifies potential
risks, assesses their impact and likelihood and develops appropriate
action plans to mitigate risks to a level that the Company is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s objectives on a regular basis.
The Group will continue to enhance the risk management practice
and internal control system and adopts a stringent governance
framework with reference to the best practice in the market.

The Group’s business, financial position and results may be
affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk are the main inherent
risks which may cause the Group’s financial condition or results
differing materially from expected or historical results.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar and most
of the business transactions are denominated in other currencies
including United States dollar, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. The
Group enters forward currency contracts to hedge against the
currency risks arising from Group’s operations and its funding
sources, with reference to cash flow forecasts, capital expenditure
commitment and business budget. The Group does not speculate
on foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates
mainly attributable to the bank loan obligations with floating
interest rates. To manage respective exposure arising from the
fluctuations in interest rates, the Group enters into interest
rate swap contracts. The Group has adequate internal control
procedures to monitor the financial position exposures arising
from fluctuation in the market interest rate for funding sources
denominated in HK dollars, United States dollars and other foreign
currencies.
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Liquidity risk

The objective of liquidity risk management is to ensure the
adequacy of Group's funds to meet the daily business operations,
capital commitment and bank loans repayment. The Group
monitors its liquidity position on a daily basis as the Group's
treasurer also reviews the bank loans and cashflow positions in
different geographical areas and adjusts the mix of short-term and
long-term re-financing requirement.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the customers are
unwilling or unable to fulfill their obligations which then
incurs financial losses to the Group. The Group's credit control
function manages the credit risks by assessing the credit limits
and credit terms to be granted to customers and setting up the
internal control system of credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to recover overdue debts, if any. The Group also enters
into credit insurance contracts to mitigate the credit risks arising
from the collection of accounts receivables balances.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system within the Group, particularly
in respect of financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management systems, and setting appropriate policies so that the
objectives of the Group can be effectively and efficiently achieved
and the associated risks can be identified, managed and mitigated
at an acceptable level.

Appropriate policies and procedures are provided to the staff
to take all measures that can (i) safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; (i) keep proper and accurate
accounting records and enhance the reliability of financial
reporting; and (iii) ensure efficiency and effectiveness of
operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The design of internal control system is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage and minimise, and if circumstances permit, eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group's operational systems.

The Group’s internal control framework includes the following
major components:

s an organisation structure with defined responsibility,
proper segregation of duties and appropriately delegated
authority;

7 policies and procedures relating to financial control,

internal control and risk management that can identify,
assess, measure and control risks effectively and efficiently;
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3. operational and financial budgeting and forecasting
systems which facilitate performance measurement,
including regular budgeting analysis;

4. clear rules and guidelines that work to empower the review
and approval of major capital and current expenditures;

5. strict internal procedures and controls enabling the
handling and dissemination of price sensitive information;
and

6. developing a whistleblowing policy that encourages

employees to report any incidents of fraud, corruption,
theft or misconduct in secure and a fearless working
environment.

The internal audit department evaluates the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's internal control system.
Identified deficiencies are from time to time reported to the Audit
Committee and recommendations are made to the Board and the
management of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Recognising the importance of maintaining on-going
communication with shareholders, the Board establishes
a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. To facilitate the timely,
transparent and effective communication with shareholders, the
Board provides different communication channels for shareholders
and investors including annual general meetings and other general
meetings.

The annual general meeting provides a forum for the Company’s
shareholders to raise comments, offer suggestions, and exchange
views with the Board. The notice of annual general meeting is
distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting. The Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
external auditors shall attend each annual general meeting or
any general meeting to answer questions from the shareholders
on the performance of the Company so as to allow them to
fully understand the Company’s operations, management and
development.

During the Year, the Board convened an annual general meeting
on 12 May 2015. The voting results of annual general meeting
were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and the results are available for inspection by the
shareholders of the Company upon request made to the Company
Secretary. The attendance record of the Directors at the meeting is
set out on page 34 of this Annual Report.
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Besides general meeting, the EDs and senior management of the
Company met with various investors during the Year to enhance
interactive communications with shareholders and investors. Our
official website contains timely updated company news, corporate
information, announcements, interim and annual reports of the
Group, all of which are available for download with a view of
making easy access to corporate information for the shareholders
and investors of the Company. Circulars, interim and annual
reports are sent to shareholders and investors in a timely manner
and they are also available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Convening Special General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholders holdings, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so
repaid shall be retained by the Company out of any sums due
or to become due from the Company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such Directors as were
in default.

During the Year, there has been no special general meeting
convened, nor any relevant proposal received by the Company.
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Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries can be put to the Board through the investor relations
department of the Company at 16/F., Yiko Industrial Building, 10
Ka Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong or email to ir@manyue.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Managing
Director. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises the
Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the
Year, the Company Secretary confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group commits to environmental protection. In this respect,
the Group established an environmental management system that
conforms to global standards and was granted with ISO14001
accreditation in 2004. The quality control department monitors
product quality and the use of certain chemical substances.

Besides, the implementation of the European Union's Directives
on Restriction of the Use of the Certain Hazardous Substances
in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“RoHS") in August 2005
in European Union members’ states has impacted the electronic
industry. The Group installed new equipments and established a
comprehensive set of policies and procedures to ensure that the
Group's products are fully compliant with the RoHS requirements
for the European Union and equivalent requirement for the rest of
the world. The Group had also made it mandatory for all vendors
and business partners to comply with the RoHS requirements.

During the Year, the Group was awarded the Certificates of

Excellence in Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence —
“Wastewi$e"” by the Environmental Campaign Committee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principle activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing and
trading of electronic components and trading of raw materials.
Details of activities of these principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 53 of this Annual Report.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend final dividend for the Year (2014:
1.0 HK cent per share).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 177 of this Annual Report. This summary does
not form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in Notes 34 and 35 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Year are set out in Notes 42 and 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted
to 101,667,000 (2014: HK$124,301,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
165,862,000 (2014: HK$168,158,000), may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company repurchased a total of 3,692,000 shares on the
Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$3,069,300
from July 2015 upto the date of the Report of the Directors. All
the repurchased shares were cancelled subsequently pursuant to
rule 10.06 of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the repurchases are as
follows:

BE BEOIHEAQFT LTRSS

ARt AREAEEREAE  AR2EE
REEZFTE A ££3,692,000 8 %1 RIELTE A
3,069,300/ 7T © FTBMEEIR M HERIE EMARAE
10.06{45E4H - BBRIMAETAT -

Number of Purchase price Aggregate
shares BEERK consideration
Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest paid
B/ E BEROHE RS BE EXNRELRE
(HK$) (GLY) (HK$)
(B7T) (A7) (A7)
July 2015 1,190,000 0.99 0.98 1,177,100
—E-RFtA
August 2015 1,266,000 0.95 0.73 1,071,840
—Z-0%FN\A
December 2015 544,000 0.67 0.60 346,800
—E-RE+ZA
January 2016 692,000 0.70 0.68 473,560
—T-RE—A
Total 3,692,000 3,069,300
st
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries B _EX ARSI - AR RS EARHBEARNES

has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the six months prior to the date of this Report of
the Directors.
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OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
Since the publication date of the 2015 interim report of the
Company, there were changes in Directors’ information which are
reported as follows:

1. Mr. Mar Selwyn was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the nomination committee of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited in July 2015, and
resigned from such offices in December of the same year;
and

2. Mr. Yeung Yuk Lun has tendered his resignation from the
offices of Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 12
April 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there had not been any other changes to
the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed pursuant to
rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 18.3% (2014: 19.8%) of the total turnover during
the Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 5.5% (2014: 6.2%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 45.3% (2014: 47.4%) of the total purchases during
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 16.4% (2014: 17.0%).

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the first five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the Directors’ and
Senior Management'’s Biographies section on pages 15 to 19 of
this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and as at the date of this Annual
Report are set out on page 2 of this Annual Report.

Under the existing Bye-laws of the Company, one third of
the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and re-election at each annual general meeting. In
accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company, Ms. Kee Chor
Lin, Mr. Wong Ching Ming, Stanley and Mr. Lo Kwok Kwei,
David will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
shall offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. None of the Directors offering
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all INEDs to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration packages of all EDs and senior management
are determined by the Remuneration Committee. Also, the
remuneration of INEDs is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board. The remuneration packages are subject
to comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EE®mRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole of any substantial
part of the Company’s business were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Report of the Directors, the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EE®RE(E)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the = HAARATE B LHEBRD ZIFA
Company:

Capacity, nature of interest and
number of shares and underlying shares held

g ERMERASROREBROHE

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

Nature of Interest in Interestin  issued share

Name of directors Capacity interest shares share options capital

1EEDE]

ERTREAZ

a4 BRERES BABE D

Kee Chor Lin 1 Interest of controlled Corporate 209,689,667 - 44.09%

corporation

s e IVNGIE: NG

Kee Chor Lin Beneficial owner Personal 51,006,334 - 10.73%
e BEmEBA (EUN

260,696,001 - 54.82%

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene Beneficial owner Personal 4,716,666 - 0.99%
RFE ERERA TELA

Wong Ching Ming, Stanley Beneficial owner Personal - 500,000 0.11%
FHEH ESBEEA A

Note: B &

These shares are held by Man Yue Holdings Inc., a company wholly and &S {3 eiMan Yue Holdings Inc. 454 » ez AR AR AR
beneficially owned by Ms. Kee Chor Lin, the chairman of the Company. FE AR EL T2 E TR o

Save as disclosed above and as disclosed under the heading [ bt FilEE MG EEEERDRBELEZEF |—
“DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES” as @& ih - MAEEREOY  HMEEENSST
at the date of this Report of the Directors, none of the Directors or g A 8 A4 A 7]k BT A ARESE@ > B85 - 18RI %
chief executive had registered an interest or short position in the  si{E%rh A BEIRIEE S & HI S 60| S 35282 508
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any g 4= B f /8 B 17 ME A A 7 BB S BT 2 s sk
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded  %#& -

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EE®mRE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates Share Option Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further
details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this Report of the Directors, 2,530,000 (2014:
2,960,000) share options remained outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme and the details of the movements of the said
outstanding share options were as follows:

As at Lapsed As at
Name or category of 1 January during the 31 December
participants 2015 year 2015
SEEREHEG RZB-HE REEEAR R-2-1F

—-A-H T=A=t-H

b lve o !

ADERA B E 5 R AR BRI
WEBZ A AR RERMUEDRES - BIEAE
ZHEE— S HBRR S B I MR M IS HE -

RAZESEHRE B - RIEEREFTE152,530,00015
(== — U4 : 2,960,00017 ) BE B HE i AR AT(E - Ll

Date of Exercise

grant of Exercise period price of
share options of share options! share options?
RHBRE BRETES BRE
B fT6EME:

HK$

per share

BRET

15.9.2010 15.9.2011 to 14.9.2020 2.262
15.9.2011%14.9.2020

15.9.2010 15.9.2012 to 14.9.2020 2.262
15.9.2012%14.9.2020

8.8.2006 8.8.2007 to 25.5.2016 1.6
8.8.2007%25.5.2016

15.9.2010 15.9.2011 to 14.9.2020 2.262
15.9.2011£14.9.2020

15.9.2010 15.9.2012 to 14.9.2020 2.262
15.9.2012£14.9.2020

Directors
Bz
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley 250,000 - 250,000
FRER 250,000 - 250,000
500,000 - 500,000
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 250,000 - 250,000
At
In aggregate 1,114,000 (218,000) 896,000
At
In aggregate 1,096,000 (212,000) 884,000
At
2,460,000 (430,000) 2,030,000
2,960,000 (430,000) 2,530,000
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EE®RE(E)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” and “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME" above, at no time during the Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the date of this Report of the Directors, the interests and
short positions of persons, other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company, being 5% or more in the interest in the issued
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, are set out as below:

Long positions:

Capacity and nature of interest

BRSNS

Personal/Beneficial owner

BN BEmEEA

Man Yue Holdings Inc.

EEREROIESF ZER

BEXTEERESTRASREN - HAKN RE
I e FOR R I R [ B IR v AT &) IR B & 51
RAFEAEARR - SIEBEMESHIRESE 2
BRAKE FLERATEBALR BB REH M
R WETEITRR SN AABREEM
MEARBES I AL BREETESERE
fAAER 2 BREER -

FERRREMALRRS RAERRT Z
EENKR

RAEZHREBRH - RIEEZ LB FRPIEXVES
336HGMRTEMTFE 2 HABRLMEE  HEARFE
BITRAS %A L2 Rk R 2 AL (FREZERA
RAEIESTBRABINGT :

R :

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital
AR HITRA
ZERNBEDH
44.09%

Number of

ordinary shares held
g EREE

209,689,667

Note:

DJE Investment S.A., Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl
Ehrhardt reduced their shareholdings below 5% on 17 December 2015
and ceased to be a substantial shareholder of the Company.

GEX

R=ZZT—AF+=A++H8  DIE Investment S.A. * Dr. Jens
Ehrhardt Kapital AG & Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt,Z 35 I8 &
BES%UAT - WABAAARZEERF ©
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEREE)

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Report of the
Directors, no person, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group's business at any time during the Year and up to the date
of this Report of the Directors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Report of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Annual Report for the Year has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company. Particulars of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Board Committees section
of the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 31 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. PwC
will retire as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and will not offer itself for re-
appointment. The Board has resolved, with the recommendation
from the Audit Committee, to propose the appointment of KPMG
as new auditor of the Company following the retirement of PwC,
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. And the resolution to
authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of KPMG will also
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2016
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man
Yue Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 53 to 176, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

BERNREEERATDRR

(REFREZ AL HRAA])

AR EED (AT BRI F AP ) EJA DN ENES3EE
176 ESMEREEERAR (A THEIEAR )R
HIB AR 2R MBHWER - WERAMHERREBEN
“E-RFT A=t HZEAREERBRERE
ZALFEZGEAPRAER HREEAERER  Fak
DEPRNGERERER - WREZGFBERHZE
KE MM EREER -

BAREEAREREETESHM A EM 2 BB
TR ER R BB A TS0 2 H AR R A BT
HE - SBAUBRAENEETATRY - &%
BHR AR M REM LB NEEE - A
A MR TR B A SR T B2 BA S
SRR -

BMZEERRER M2 ETHZEFEE M B HREE
HER  WREARE NN\ —FREDEFEI0RER
ERERME - RN RERIEEME A o A
TERABRENRAEAEMA LA LSAEEMNE
£

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

AR IE G it FTF BT B IRARFRE

ML : +852 2289 8888 » {HE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B 2B E (&)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ek

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—aF1+-A=+—HIFFE

2015 2014
—E-IfF “E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Revenue WA 56 974,421 1,186,967
Cost of sales SEERA (799,381) (933,605)
Gross profit EF) 175,040 253,362
Other income EA 6 6,818 9,096
Other gains, net Hfla 55 6 1,493 27,893
Selling and distribution costs WENNEER (50,055) (57,944)
Administrative expenses THER (143,659) (150,868)
Operating (loss)/profit B2 (B8)/ & 7 (10,363) 81,539
Changes in fair values of interest rate swaps FREH DA E
pa 1) 9 (4,647) (5,963)
Finance costs g 10 (30,214) (30,290)
Finance income BIEMA 11 8,580 8,757
Share of results of joint ventures RS hE 7 EE 23 (1,296) 732
Share of results of an associate FEh—FRBE N F 2 $E 24 544 1,221
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA(ER) /H5F (37,396) 55,996
Tax BE 14 (8,442) (12,160)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER) /B (45,838) 43,836
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEMG(B18), /5 -
~ Equity holders of the Company —RATREREA (45,095) 43,257
- Non-controlling interests —FFERAR R (743) 579
(45,838) 43,836
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable RARRESEA
to equity holders of the Company EER(58)BF 15
— Basic —ER (9.43) HK centsi&fli  9.03 HK centsy&{ll
- Diluted — g (9.43) HK centsi&{li  9.03 HK centsi&ill
The notes on pages 60 to 176 are an integral part of these  HFNFECOEFE 176 8 2 T AUt F4RE M Bk < 4

consolidated financial statements.

FRERD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meZEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-F—RF{-A=1—HALFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —TpuE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(EE),wH (45,838) 43,836
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: HEm2m(sE) s
Item that will not be reclassified HEeTgEH»ES
subsequently to profit or loss Wk 2BH
— Assets revaluation surplus, net of —HIBRRIEREEEHA
tax % 42 9,599 5,076
ltems that may be reclassified HgnsfoRElanske
subsequently to profit or loss 15 H
— Change in fair value of available- —AHHEREAREY
for-sale investments ) 42 576 358
— Currency translation differences —[EHER (129,427) (1,756)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for  AREEHRFIIEE
the year, net of tax Hip2m(E8), s (119,252) 3,678
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for — AEE 2 (E1E), g5
the year (165,090) 47,514
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEE2E(E1E), e egE
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —RAEIREREA (164,081) 46,948
- Non-controlling interests — R AR R R A (1,009) 566
(165,090) 47,514

The notes on pages 60 to 176 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Bi#ARH:EBEAER A A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

As at 31 December 2015
REZF—aF1+=HA=1+—H

2015 2014
—F-1F —TlF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R M RE 17 711,069 793,139
Prepaid land premium TR ETER K 18 71,728 77,851
Investment properties KEYE 19 141,530 138,872
Intangible assets WA E 21 1,113 1,890
Investments in joint ventures AN EZIRE 23 95,916 105,006
Investment in an associate R—EEERE 2 ’E 24 72,438 76,671
Prepayments on purchases of BEYXE  BELEREZ
property, plant and equipment EffiEE 66,060 87,910
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 20 12,701 13,881
Other prepayments H BB 1,822 2,196
Deferred tax assets EEMRIBEE 32 13,396 15,862
Total non-current assets ERBEEMRE 1,187,773 1,313,278
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =g 25 463,518 449,594
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 26 343,785 311,233
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE « Re REAER
receivables HIE 62,140 79,321
Loans to a joint venture BT BeERECLER 23 96,989 102,760
Due from joint ventures FEWEEE T RIA 23 34,438 38,305
Due from an associate JEU—FEEs & A B2 B 24 3,651 38,431
Financial assets at fair value through LARBEFAWEERZ
profit or loss ERMEE 27 51 59
Tax recoverable AT U (B 7 E 9244 2,939
Time deposits over three months —@ERA EZ EHFER 29 11,936 12,676
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 29 347,797 400,839
Total current assets BV EERE 1,365,249 1,436,157
Current liabilities B =R
Trade and bills payables B ZIEF R EiE 30 191,786 168,207
Other payables and accrued liabilities HihER B L ETEE 64,045 64,866
Due to joint ventures EREERE A 23 19,780 20,339
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 28 5,040 5,631
Tax payable FERFLE 4,625 4,831
Bank loans SRITER 371 505,477 505,646
Dividends payable FEATAR B, 43 41
Total current liabilities mMEBERE 790,796 769,561
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

meEERERGE)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT BT
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Bank loans IRITER 317 308,098 352,219
Derivative financial instruments TS T A 28 10,724 11,207
Provision for long service payments RERBSBE 554 1,040
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEARE 32 34,955 33,573
Deferred income FEIEIA 33 11,635 12,690
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBERE 365,966 410,729
Net assets EEBE 1,396,260 1,569,145
Equity s
Share capital R& X 34 47,624 47,924
Reserves Ee 42 1,344,354 1,511,138
Proposed final dividend R AR AR B 16 - 4,792
Equity attributable to equity AARREFEA
holders of the Company PEfhRER 1,391,978 1,563,854
Non-controlling interests FERBRER 4,282 5,291
Total equity ERBE 1,396,260 1,569,145

The financial statements on pages 53 to 176 were approved by #HRES3EE176H LB MEANR_Z—RFE=AN
the Board of Directors on 9 March 2016 and were signed on its ~ B&ZEREHEW BERE -
behalf.

Kee Chor Lin Chan Yu Ching, Eugene
LrE (-
Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 60 to 176 are an integral part of these FHRFE0EFE176E 2 st AltSiRE Rz 2 A
consolidated financial statements. BERD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERAEER

As at 31 December 2015
REZF—aF1+=HA=1+—H

Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Assets revaluation surplus, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Change in fair value of an available-for-sale
investment
- Currency tranlation differences

Total comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2014

Employee share option scheme
- Share option exercised
Release of non-controlling interests upon
disposal of a subsidiary
Release of reserve pon disposal of a subsidiary
2013 final dividend and 2014 interim dividend

Balance at 31 December 2014
Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Assets revaluation surplus, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
- Change in fair value of an available-for-sale
investment
- Currency tranltion differences

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2015

Employee share option scheme
- Share options forferted

Shares repurchased

2014 inal dividend

Balance at 31 December 2015

Notes

R-mE-R-EYES

AERHH
R2EdE:
HETAERARENSA LA

~RHEREEB RS £
ERIRERSRENER R

- EREDAEZED
-EiER £

R _F-DMET-AZT-BLLER
EANEEE

EERRE
~CRERE
HE-RHEATRERAR
RRiEa
HE-RMEATRERGE
SR ERERER-F-IETY
Re £

TR-RETCAZT-HES
“E-RF-R-HlER
REERA
ERENE

ERTeER ERaR 2R

-HRRRREEER RS £
ERTREN R ER AR

- EREDAEZED
-EiEE £

HE_F-RETACT-RLER
JEANEEE

ERERE
-CHEERE
EEORD
“T-mERERS £

“T-REtCACt-B2EH

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ANIREEAARE

Reserves and
proposed final

Non-controlling
interests
FERERER
HKS'000

TAL

dividend
RERRTRERE
HK$000

T

Total
it
HK$000
TAn

Share capital
B
HKS'000
T

Total equity
EafE
HKS'000

TAL

099 148340 1,531,331 7411 1,538,742

- BT BT 579 B8%

- 5,076 5076 - 5076

- 3% 3% - 3%

- (178) (178) 1) (1756)

- 1948 1948 56 4751

15 57 m - m

_ . - (2.686) (.68)

- (19 (19 - 319

- (14379) (14,379) - (14,379)

15 (14,440) (14,425) (0686) (17,411)
a4 15BH0 156385 5291 1,569,145
oo 15580 1563854 5291 1,569,145
- (85,095) (85,095) (13) (t5838)

- 9,509 9,509 - 9,509

- 5% 5% - 576

- (129,161) (129,161) (266) (129421)

- (164081) (164081) (1,009 (165,090)

- (407) (407) - (407)
(300) (2.296) (2,59) - (2,59)
- (479) (479) - (479)
(300) (7.4%) (17%) - (7.7%)
R 13M3 130197 48 139260

The notes on pages 60 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

HNEC0EE 176 A 2 ME AU FHRA M EME 24
FRERD -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
REHEREBR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2015

E—F—EE A=t —ALEE

2015 2014
—g-5f L
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL
Cash flows from operating activities ReEEBzRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BEAI(ER) 8H) (37,396) 55,996
Adjustments for: gl
Finance costs g 10 30,214 30,290
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties BENE DrEFE/ (hE) 6 525 (24,078)
Share of results of joint ventures ElhaebEc i 1,296 (732)
Share of results of an associate i e ) AN (544) (1,221)
Finance income BIUA 11 (8,580) (8,757)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BRERRESSE/ ()
equipment 7 46 (51)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BEMRETE 7 88,704 90,908
Amortisation of prepaid land premium TR ERNTEE 7 1,643 815
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEGH 7 771 716
Share options forfeited EHE kg 8 (407) -
Deferred income recognised as income EEMAERBRA 7 (327) (332)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale EHEREZRERR
investment 6 1,667 2,340
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair DB A ER 2 REE
value through profit or loss ZAnEEE/ () 7 8 @)
Negative goodwill on acquisition of a subsidiary YE-RHHBRARZERE 6 = (7,622)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBARZ K 6 - (3,085)
Unrealised fair value (gain)loss on derivative TEEBIEZRERANE
financial instruments (z) /B8 (1,074) 43
76,552 135,226
Increase in inventories FEEM (43,210) (34,047)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables BB S8R (EM),/HD (42,693) 84,548
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other BENFE - Re RERYEER S
receivables 13,824 30,923
Decrease in other prepayments EtBATERD 374 1,440
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures A EZIBR D 4,149 9,366
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from an associate JEU—REE4 A 82 FUBED /(32140) 34,780 (5,217)
Decrease in amounts due to joint ventures ENEELETIERD (559) (26,934)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables ENESRETREREN/ (L) 30,234 (16,269)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accrued — Et R FUE BB BN,/ CAd)
liabilities 1,796 (12,224)
(Increase)/decrease in provision for long service RERBEBEGEN) B
payments (486) 1
Cash generated from operations REHERS 74,761 166,823
Interest received BUFE 8,580 8,757
Interest paid BRFE (30,214) (30,290)
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net BEREEFGHTFE (3,518) (1,845)
The PRC and overseas taxes paid, net B E RSB FE (1:369) (4,863)
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEBIBETNFE 48,240 138,582
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

FERERERE)

Cash flows from investing activities

Prepayments on purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of prepaid land premium

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash

Cash used in acquisition of an available-for-sale
investment

Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary

Purchases of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Decrease in advances to joint ventures

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits over three
months

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Re-purchase of shares

Share options exercised

Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

An analysis of the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group is as follows:

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

REZDZRERE
BENZ - BERREZENTA

BENZ  BERRHE
BELHRERNK
WE-FHERE MERe
WAL EREMARE

HE-RNBARMEHR
RERVEE
HENE - BERREMETE

BTRELRZBIAD
=AM L2 e HERE D,/ (Em)
REARBZASRHFE
BEFBREIRE
HERITER

[EBERTER

BRI

BiTfERE

RARE)
REARBZASRHFE
ReLASFENIALFE

NRERRD2YEIE
F2RERALSEN

ERZRERREEEN

TEERE IR EEWATHT :

TAFRBEERBRAZAER
REEED 29

ERZBERREEEN

2015
“E-5fF

2014
—ZNF
HK$'000

HK$'000
TR

(977) (37,867)
(24,705) (36,352)
= (46,817)

= (11,452)

= (3,632)

= 2114

= (729)

549 128
1,514 1,054
740 (12,676)
(22,879) (146,229)
395,551 557,883
(439,711) (573,782)
(2,596) -
= m
(4,790) (14,375)
(51,546) (30,002)
(26,185) (37,649)
(26,857) (1,658)
400,839 440,146
347,797 400,839
347,797 400,839
347,797 400,839

The notes on pages 60 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

AREBID ©
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60

e PR ERR M

The principal activities of the Company and the Group
are the manufacturing and the trading of electronic
components and raw materials.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock
Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board on 9 March 2016.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for land
and buildings, investment properties, derivative financial
instruments, financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
investments, which have been measured at fair value.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA 7

AARMAEE T BEEREBENEEE T
T KRR RY -

ARElA—HMREREFMEIZERA
7] HiEf =ik & Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

REN B EMBERELA 2 M BHRAARE
RE TS - TAREEERERAN
SESFRRZBETITEHE - FRSEH
BRI - SRR R IAFT SR & TS ERR T
EEEACHBNMETARE -

T RRBERT 2 ER T =-F
—HF-A-BRKRZHBFEER
SRR - AR 2 KB M
RS 488 B8 K 57 4 o IR B R £ B

(a) The following new or amended standards are (a)
also mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2015 but either have
no significant impact to the Group’s results and

financial position or are not currently relevant to 7

the Group:

HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BRSENE19%  RATEAHE:
(Amendment) Contributions (Z2—%) EEMHT

(EFTA)

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2010-2012 FEYEER “E-TFR T
Project Cycle EREFEME

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements 2011-2013 FEYHER “F——F5"F-—=
Project Cycle FRE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

The following new or amended standards have
been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2015

and have not been early adopted:

Annual Improvements Project

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendment)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendment)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 28

(Amendment)

Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle?
Regulatory Deferral Accounts!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Financial Instruments?

Investment entities applying the
consolidation exception'

1 Changes effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2016
2 Changes effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018

The Group anticipates that the application of the
above new or amended standards have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA 7

THFRT SR ERT 2 ERI S E R E
REBE-ZE-—hF—H-Hzsiz&ERR
ZHRFEERARERN - BIW BRI
e

FEYCEER S i
FRE FELH
B BmEE EERERE
$145
BERBIREER RAEEEREARN

FI0RNEBES RERRZMHE

| 285% FIAEE
(BFIA)
BAMBREEN  WBRERHESL
FNFETA) EQpsi
BREGEAFI6T ARANEREETE
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B4 (BRIA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(a) Subsidiaries @ HMEAS
(i) Consolidation () BAER

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

MBAREAREREEEHIE
ZER(BREEBILER) - K&
SEREHKEERZTASER
—BERZAERR  YHEE
BEHER 2GR EZS

W BENFIETIZER - I8
R AR 5 B RS 12 5 4 A H
FERE AR - T HRZIEHIER

1 R HIRE AR A AR ©
(@ EBas
REEEABEEAR

BRIERFEAGF o WhE—
B EARAER 2K
B RATEREE 8
WRURE TS RIBER AFTEE
2z BENASE T
IR AR fE °
FrEBRERRIAR
EBLRBMELZEAE
EXEBBZAAE - R
ES =Ll & )
BRIBERFAEZ A
BERHARBERWEER
HZRAREERTE -
7N 5% 18 42 18 ) W B
& ARAESIFER
PR AR U 73 AT
BAFEECHERETER
FAGEED] - FERRI AR
BT AR IR AR AR

e

MR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KEBARE)
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i) HERE (&)
(a) Business combinations (a) EBA6(GE)

(Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration
to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA 7

W BB AR E AR
3B e

T K75 & f o b Bz
X - BB TT B
WA 2 A s
RURE B B2 BRE(EE
Mt EEREARZA
AfE AREHAEM
EEZ EflamsiEE
RIS R EER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KMEBAR(E)
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i) HEIRE (&)
(a) Business combinations (a) EBAHGE)

(Continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

FRERAE - BT
IR AR R i R SRR
BERBEBET A 2
PRSI E B
DA ELEFNER H P
AR EEFRANE
ZEFREE - W
FrEREHrER AN
B SHERIFERRR
R BB A
Rt EI1R DI ATUREB T
BRARFEEAAE
AIEFEE EN R A s
FMER -

SEANRARZEAZR
5 RAAZ R B
KRB W assa T AL
o RBREIETT A
i - BARIZ2M
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B AREREREEL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) KEBARE)
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i) HERE (&)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests (b) EHEFEZHEL

in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners of the
subsidiary. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MBLARE)

(ii) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When
the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

(i) BIBBHR
U B R 7 2 & Lk Ak
WEHR - AABERECHE
BN - B AR 2 ¥E&
AN A AR B 4 K B W AR S 7B
EEAR -

T HE DA P B 2 B) 2 $% B U AR
B Mz S BEZNE AR
SEWI 8=l i el Gt
B AZARERNB LR
RAZRE R BBARIET
ZREE(BEBE)NGEAY
BHERZRE R - RIZARIK
HRR B B 1 % R B T TIRE
AU, o

g
LERNAEAEAR

T

SN

REBEREGE  RAZEEEZER
BIRIRR A TERR - T E 1R (E A8 B DARE
RAEBERGEWHEBMR 2B NE
fEEREES - HAKEERSZ
CEZEBERENSIBHERNZEEDR
s (BREMNEE LERASE
REBEREREFR L RBER)
AR BB ARARINGE - HEHES
EABEEHIRKRZE SRR FHIA
BRI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(b) Joint ventures (Continued) (b) BELEE)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in
an associate is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in an associate includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BAREER R ML (AR)

AN
:éﬁiT\IZl

(c)

Associate (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of results of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associate have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(d) Goodwill d) &8

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associate represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Non-current assets held-for-sale
Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale
is considered highly probable. The non-current
assets are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties, even if
held-for-sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) Y% - BERRE

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and
buildings, comprise mainly factories and offices,
are stated at revalued amount. Valuations are
performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the consolidated income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the consolidated income statement to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

All other property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) Y% BEERRMEGE)

(Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation of leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation of other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
or revalued amounts to their residual values, where
appropriate, using their estimated depreciation
rate, as follows:

Leasehold land classified Over the

as finance lease lease terms
Buildings 2%
Machinery and equipment 9% —20%
Furniture and fixtures 18% — 20%
Motor vehicles 18% — 20%
Leasehold improvements 9% - 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals
are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) Y% BERRMEGE)

(Continued)

Construction in progress represents factory
buildings, office premises and workers’
dormitories and related infrastructure projects
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the Group. They also
include properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded
in the consolidated income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “other gains — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(h)

0]

Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of properties, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item
at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as
a revaluation of properties, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. If a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised
in the income statement. Any balance of the
decrease is recognised as an expense in the income
statement.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs, and
computer software

Costs associated with research activities and
maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design
and testing of identifiable assets controlled by the
Group are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

(a) it is technically feasible to complete the
product so that it will be available for use;

(b) management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the product;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the product
will generate probable future economic
benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the product are available; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the product
during its development can be reliably
measured.

(h)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(i) Intangible assets (Continued) (i) EEEEGE)

Research and development costs, and
computer software (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised
as part of the product include the product
development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. Other development
expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Product development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which
does not exceed four years.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(k) Financial assets k) =@mEE

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: available-for-sale, loans and
receivables, and at fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends
to dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period, which
are classified as non-current assets.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in short term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, that are
classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(k)  Financial assets (Continued) (k) =E=BEEE)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of other income when the Group'’s right to
receive payments is established.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(k)

)

Financial assets (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

0]

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(I)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) I =E=WREEREGE)

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (i) DR ATHEZEE (8)

(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(I)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) I =E=REEREGE)

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets (i) TFHEHESREE

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (i) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(m) Derivative financial instruments (m) {T£€mTIA

The Group uses derivative financial instruments
such as forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to manage its risks associated with
interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to the consolidated
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original materials
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
The consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Trade and bills payables and other
payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for
goods that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Provision

Provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(s) Share capital (s) M=K

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Income tax

The tax expense for the Year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(t) Income tax (Continued) (t) FBH(E)
(ii) Deferred income tax (i) IEZEFBH
(@) Inside basis differences (a) REEEEER
Deferred income tax is recognised, BIEFBHRABEE
using the liability method, on HEERABZHEE
temporary differences arising AR & BTS2 BR
between the tax bases of assets and S REREELE 2 BT

liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(t) Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and an associate, except for
deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA 7

(t)

Frig®i (&)

(i)

(iii)

IESEFE B ()

(b) SMEEEEER

AT EET NN
A AERREBER
AZREEE 2R
ERERBYE - HEHNY
Ry 1 22 5 7 O s ) PR
ANER BRI e RS
RREAEASTENA
FORRB B 2 EIEFATS
BEfE - RIEHISH o

Ei% |

W A OR R BT Z R
MR BHAEERREH
HABRREMSHEERA
B8 K A Rl — S R 5L R —
JERTA R B AR FE AT A A
(WA B FRAEEEEER)
B2 FEH - AREFSH
BEEAERN THEHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(u)

(v)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. Where the grant relates to
the prepaid land premium, the fair value is included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income.
Deferred income is credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term of the associated assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(w) Employee benefits (w) EEEF

(i) Share option scheme (i) BT S

The Group operates the Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions
with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined
by using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in Note 35 to the
financial statements. In valuing the granting
of share options, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the historical price
of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”), if applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued) (w) EEEF(E)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued) (i) AR EI (&)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully
entitled to the award (the “vesting date”).
The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance
sheet date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Employment Ordinance long service
payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have
completed the required number of years of
service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance in the event
of the termination of their employment.
The Group is liable to make such payments
in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(w) Employee benefits (Continued) (w) EEEF(E)

(iii)  Pension schemes (i) EHREFE

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(x) Borrowings x) fBE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(z) Dividends 20 KA

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group,
which is considered as the Group’s executive team,
comprising all executive directors and headed by the
managing director. The chief operating decision-
maker is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments
based on the entity-wide financial information.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

i
)

BAREER R ML (AR)

(ab) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

(ab) SMEEIRE ()

(i)

R Z R4 R
HNEZ ZERANKZ HIER B
%ﬁ?rszﬁﬁ* HiEm 2 E=R

BERNEER - ARERS
RE R RRFEERBE SN
KEtEZEEMEERBEM
EAEZIMNEW S M EIENERE
Yean sk AERR. ©

DERAMEHENINETEZ
ERMNBESAAEZS  NE
HE R NS B EE SR S
BHMEHELCEREZRL
PIETT D o B3 55 AR AN 8
EW@ZEE%%WW*%E
C MARE R E 28R
F Lith 2 EU SRR ©

AR EFAMRERETA ZKX
AEFERECBEERAE
I BN RS RN ER S

AR EWE S E R — 8D -
DEAAIHHEZRASIE
BUeRBEECELZRE &
AE 2SR

Annual Report 2015 ¥R

93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(ab) SMEEIRE (4E)

(ab) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (i) EEAQT

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(0) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(ac) Financial guarantee (ac) BIH#ER

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by the judgement of management.
The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated income statement.

Repurchase of shares

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the considerations
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs, is deducted from equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received
(net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs) is included in equity attributable
to the Company’s equity holders.

MBEREDR/RBEER R 2 &
R BITARBEEBABEZNE
HFRmARRAE AMENARZIEL
RIBZAH - ZEMBRERIDRKM
BARIRETIRT - PISHE REM
B WESER  BX REMIRTT
BE -

MBERNENERERE BRAA
ERMBREER - RO THREK
ARARZERRTZ2AERRLE
BRRBEEB ST EAFE18RER
ZERBHNBERRZATEEZ
REMFTUARSERE)E - tE
AR BBEUR Z&Bm I BERKLRL
% EAEEEZHEET - WK
ZERPRARERFHANERESE
MR - M RERAR B EIZMNE
RiFEWERANZH °

EAE) &)
(EEESOESEINGI A RANNCT P £
A BARE(BREEMEEEGIEN
AR R Rz B AT
ks - EERMDBEEHIERETH
Ik MR ERD B REEHET -
A2 UARAE IR T B IS0 52
DA 5t AR Bl s A AL
A

Annual Report 2015 ¥R



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(i) Fair values of properties

The fair values of investment properties, land
and buildings are determined at the end of each
reporting period by independent professional
valuers. The fair values of certain land and buildings
in the PRC are determined on a depreciated
replacement cost basis. This methodology is
based on an estimate of the market value for
the existing use of the land, plus the current
cost of replacement of the existing structures
less deductions for physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.
The fair values of the remaining land and buildings
and investment properties are determined on
an open market value basis by reference to
comparable market transactions.

The fair values of investment properties and land
and buildings would change by approximately
HK$14,153,000 and HK$25,746,000, respectively,
if the market values of comparable properties differ
by 10% from the Group’s estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(i)  Useful lives and impairment of property, (i) Y BERREZUERFH

plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful
lives are less than previously estimated. It will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
is recognised as the amount by which the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 3(e). The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,
which are based on the best information available
to reflect the amount obtainable at each reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(iii)  Fair values and impairment of available- (iii) AUHHEREZAABRRE

for-sale investments

Fair values of the available-for-sale investments
are determined based on valuation obtained from
financial institution or based on the valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer
using discounted cash flow analysis valuation
techniques. The inputs to the discounted cash flow
model are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Changes in the underlying assumptions of the
valuations could affect the reported fair values of
the available-for-sale investments.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. Based on
the Group’s assessment, an impairment charge of
HK$1,667,000 was recorded in “Other gains, net”
in the current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BAREER R ML (AR)

Fair values of derivative financial
instruments

Forward exchange contracts are marked to
market. The fair value of interest rate swaps is
the estimated amount that the Group would
receive or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties. Judgement is required
in determining such valuations. Changes in the
underlying assumptions could have impact on the
profit and loss of the Group. The Group recognised
fair value loss of HK$4,647,000 on the interest rate
swaps and fair value gain of HK$585,000 on the
forward exchange contracts in the current year.

Current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax
assets and liabilities in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in
which such estimates have been changed.
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28 o BT LliHE T BED HIE -
ERARRLIRES - Al geE RS
ErWasREETE RAFE
AEERMNEEHERAREEBIE
4,647,000/8 7T © WHLRAGINE A KIFE
RAS B 2E585,000/8 T °

ERRIELEDIR

AEBEBERZERDEAERBMARE
Mo BESBAERZFMESHEER
BIEHBERHE - 2B RFET
A ZREBEEETIRERETE » it
EEHIRERBERFHINRIT
Bz 2RR  FRZRATEFELE
EHEZERREENREERAR

RETE B R AT BEE A R R FEER B
MAT AR EME R E R E R
B SRRESTEREZERNG
BIEEHEENIREE - BE i
RZBEERAEESREE - BEEA
AR P BE R 1T AR 2 & ER B0 g A 2 s e
RAKFARRRRGEE R E
KAV - MERBRIRREME - B
MERSTERBMAREZHEA
RAETAIRE B M BUIR 2 FERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(vi) Provision for inventories (vi) FE&RE

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability
of inventories. Write downs on inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and
write-downs of inventories in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed. In accordance
with the Group’s assessment, a reversal of
impairment of inventories of HK$1,439,000 was
recorded by the Group in the current year.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are
applied to receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have been changed.
No trade receivables were written off and an
impairment provision of HK$1,563,000 was made
by the Group in the current year.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER A E

GFERBEEFE R Z5M 2 sH AU
ZREREE B HEEHRBREE L
FER A B AT RE S AT B IR B 8 ATT E B
o sk BIMORL T 2258 A A R b AT o
WIBEAA RN R STihE - AlBEERE
B et ERR 2 EEET
BEREEMRE - EASEF G - A%
BRAAREEER51,439,0008 T2 FE
SREREE o

W ERE

AN ER AR 45 ) R W sk T8 A] Yz [Bl 14 2 &F
HET RN GIERERE - EH =4
BB CERERA LTI DE
BISTIR FE SR IE R 455 - bt B FE M 3koE
B ZEIE A H B R G E - MIBRAE R
REREEMET - BIEEEBEBTEEH
(HETERE 2 FERERZ BRFIERE
BEREUGIERERIE - REERA
FEIWEMEHEWE SRR - WrtiE
B 1,563,000/8 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BAREER R ML (AR)

(viii) Impairment assessment of the

investments in joint ventures and an
associate

The Group tests annually whether investments
in joint ventures and associate have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Notes 3(b) and (c). The recoverable
amounts of investments in joint ventures and
associate have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgement and
estimates, in particular of future revenue or cash
flow. Management believes that any reasonable

REELER —HBEQT 2R
B 2R ERE

IRIBHEE3(D) R (O Fr it 2 &R
rEBBFHNAELERBZE AT
ZERERBHBREREETRA -
REEEERBERR ZIREZAME
YeBEREEHEEHEXT SR
BEE - %FaTEH 23 M A R h
e BEEARKGEHRERE - &
EERREMZEFRRZEEA R
ERTEEHRSELEM CIRER
BEREEATKESHE

possible deviation from any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amounts
of cash-generating units to exceed their recoverable
amounts.

The Group’s executive team, comprising all executive HAAR B TESHEN W HEESALIRE
directors and headed by the managing director of the By AREBHITERATELERRA(EE
Company, is considered as the Chief Operating Decision EERRAL) o EBEERRATEHRFTAE
Maker (“CODM"). The CODM reviews the performance of Bl

the Group on a regular basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

As substantial business operations of the Group relate to
the manufacturing, selling and distribution of electronic
components, the CODM makes decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment based on the
entity-wide financial information. Accordingly, there is
only one single reportable segment for the Group. Set
out below is a summary list of key performance indicators
reviewed by the CODM on a regular basis:

7 EER(H)
MRAREARNER LB RS  HER
HWEFTHBM - HALEEELEREA
BREBARZHBEMELENERSERE
BT 2RE o Al - AEERE—EE—T
EHRHH  TELERRAEMRTZEER
BRIEBMERTIINT :

Revenue WA 974,421 1,186,967
Gross profit EF 175,040 253,362
Gross profit margin (%) FEMZE(%) 18.0% 21.3%
EBITDA (Note i) EBITDA(K722()) 83,942 175,104
EBITDA margin (%) EBITDALL 3 (%) 8.6% 14.8%
Operating expenses (Note ii) B (BTEEG)) 193,714 208,812
Operating expenses/revenue (%) 4B AR AL 2R (%) 19.9% 17.6%
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (ER) % (45,838) 43,836
Net (loss)/profit margin (%) “i(E518) /i F R (%) (4.7%) 3.7%
Total assets BEME 2,553,022 2,749,435
Equity attributable to equity holders AARRIERZEA

of the Company (the “Equity") FEn R ([ ) 1,391,978 1,563,854
Inventories FE 463,518 449,594
Inventory turnover days FEBEERH 212 176
Trade receivables EUE 5 R 343,785 311,233
Trade receivables turnover days FEUE 5 IR FUAE R & 129 96
Trade and bills payables BNEZERRER 191,786 168,207
Trade and bills payables turnover days B ESERRAREIRAERE 88 66
Total interest-bearing debt SHEERERE 813,575 857,865
Cash and cash equivalents e RRSZEEY 347,797 400,839
Time deposits over three months =EANREZFEEBREFR 11,936 12,676
Net debt BEFE 453,842 444,350
Net debt to Equity ratio (%) BB FEEY Sl & (%) 32.6% 28.4%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 SEERE)
Note (i): EBITDA represents the earnings before interest expense, HiaE() - EBITDAIEARETFIS X - BiE - HEKR
tax, depreciation and amortisation. SR AT ©
Note (ii): Operating expenses represent the expenditure that Biat(i) : REBREAEBREEHE —REBE
the Group incurs as a result of performing its normal EZER BREHEE  2HEBERARTH
business operations, including selling and distribution EH -

costs and administrative expenses.

The following table presents the revenue and non-current TRYRAN S B IR B B 5 2 WA RIETR
assets of the Group by geographical location: BB ¢

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1T—HILEE
2015 2014

—EB-HF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT

Revenue from external customers by ZRENIEFEHEBNE

geographical location B2z WA
Hong Kong BE 122,325 119,790
The PRC A 505,267 566,008
Taiwan A 177,248 252,943
Southeast Asia W 36,041 68,472
Korea 35 5,705 11,498
United States ESE 37,940 60,323
Europe BoM 55,554 58,552
Other countries HEMER 34,341 49,381

974,421 1,186,967

As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—8H
2015 2014

—E—HEF —E—pOE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T

Non-current assets (exclude deferred FERBEE(FEIFEERIES
tax assets and financial instruments) ERLFIE)

Hong Kong BE 133,843 138,687
The PRC i 955,182 1,067,961
Other countries HER 72,651 76,887

1,161,676 1,283,535
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6

GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
trade returns and discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and other gains, net is

WA~ HARA R E fth Y 25 2R

WA - IRRAKE LXK TiHEREHEm
REMBREE RN ERFE -

WA~ Bt ARE MR EFEAMT

as follows:

Revenue
Manufacture and trading of electronic
components
Trading of raw materials

Other income
Scrap sales
Subsidies from the PRC government
Rental income generated from
investment properties
Others

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
WA
BENEE
Bl 965,495 1,125,314
BEEME 8,926 61,653
974,421 1,186,967
2015 2014
- —TIF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Hrl A

BERIEE 109 824
BT A B 972 3,522

WEMEEEY
MAEUA 4,597 4,149
Hitb 1,140 601
6,818 9,096
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6

GAINS, NET (CONTINUED)

Other gains, net
Negative goodwill on acquisition of a

Hith K25 380

Y- B AT

v H AR A K E b U 55 8R

2015
—E-RF

2014
—ZE—OF
HK$'000
Tt

HK$'000
TERT

subsidiary ame = 7,622
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENB AR W - 3,085
Fair value gain on forward currency REHEBEHZ

contracts (Note 28) D EWE (H7728) 585 227
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment WEMEZ ANRE

properties (&518),/Was (525) 24,078
Foreign exchange differences, net ME W R 609 (4,779)
Write-off of other payable (Note) Hth fE T FRIB BB (A5 E) 2,491 -
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale A ERE 2

investment (Note 20) BIERE (H15E20) (1,667) (2,340)

1,493 27,893
Note: As of 31 December 2015, other payable of HK$2,491,000 HiiF: RZZE—RAF+-_RA=+—H BRES

was fully written off as the Directors considered that the

chance of settlement was remote.

RAEFE ZBEE M - BHE M- RE
2,491,000/ 70 B A2 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

7 OPERATING PROFIT 7 KRR
The Group's operating profit is arrived at after charging/ ANEE 7 LR FE IR (GEA) T FIETE
(crediting) the following:

2015 2014
—E-HF —T P
Notes HK$'000 HK$’'000
Htat THERT FAT
Employee benefit expense EEREFHXZ 8 223,072 225,924
Cost of inventories sold (including BEREFTERA(BIED
raw materials and consumables 2R 2 R K ERE
used and changes in inventories VAR EERK o R R B n 2.
of finished goods and work in FEEE)
progress) 800,820 930,795
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEB &
Audit services ZBRTS 1,525 2,010
Non-audit services FERZ BRI 427 549
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEMERETE
equipment 17 88,704 90,908
Amortisation of prepaid land premium = 3078 & T8~ ZU s 18 1,643 815
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 21 777 716
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment JEEE () 46 (51)
Lease payments under operating T REFZEERE
leases for land and buildings EeHh 21,243 22,010
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment  CRl{EREE) /TFEHE
of inventories (Note) (Ht&t) (1,439) 2,810
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 R FURE 1,563 63
Trade receivables written off W SH B E 5 BR AR 525 -
Fair value gain on financial assets at AR BT AWK Z
fair value through profit or loss TRIEEAERR 8 (4)
Deferred income recognised as EEWATETR AUA
income (327) (332)
Note: During the Year, certain inventories which were impaired Bt RAFE BETRBEFEREZFEE
in prior years have been sold. Thus, the impairment & - BI1,439,00078 7 2 REREE &
provision of HK$1,439,000 has been reversed and Bt ALRE WSR2 SHEKRAIA -
included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8

T & REM
ENEE ERRRE(HTaE42)
RRERT B

Wages and salaries
Share options forfeited (Note 42)
Pension scheme contributions

EEERREX
2015 2014
—Z2—HF —ZE—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T
206,057 212,980
(407) -
17,422 12,944
223,072 225,924

Pensions — defined contribution plans
As of 31 December 2015, there were no forfeiture
contributions available.

Contributions totalling approximately HK$79,000 (2014:
HK$90,000 ) were payable to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme at the year-end.

9 CHANGES IN FAIR VALUES OF INTEREST 9
RATE SWAPS

FREH 2 N A EEE
(H1:£28)

Fair value losses on interest rate swap
(Note 28)

BARE - EEMRETE
R-ZE—FAF+-A=+—8  WEARRK

K o
RNERBRBHIERESEEMNE XD
79,000/ 70 (== —PU4F : 90,0007 7T )4 HK °

NREHIANEZEE

2015
—Z2—-RF

2014
—ZT—puF
HK$'000
T8t

HK$'000
THET

4,647 5,963

At 31 December 2015, the Group held certain interest
rate swap contracts entered into in 2009 and 2010 for
a contracted period of ten years each. These contracts
were entered into to stabilise the Group’s overall interest
expense for the periods covered by these contracts.

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—0H AEEFEFAE
TRZBZNFR B —TFF L2 K= H
BR - BRFBERTF - ZFANTIRIEBE
ARERBHPARZ BB S HMA]L

Annual Report 2015 3R

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

10 FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on bank loans
Others

11 FINANCE INCOME

Interest income from loan to a joint
venture (Note 39)

Interest income from term deposits and
bank balances

10 H&XZH
2015 2014
—EB-RfF —F-mEF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
IRITERZF B 25,647 26,669
Hoth 4,567 3,621
30,214 30,290
11 BBKRA
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
BT HEEDEZER
Z M BUA (H3E39) 4,546 4,560
TR EIRITHE G
FLEUA 4,034 4,197
8,580 8,757
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 12 EEBERESITHRAEMS

EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERESTHAEMS
emoluments
Directors’ remuneration, including remuneration of 181 F TR B M AR T R E BN FE
chief executives (Ms. Kee Chor Lin and Mr. Chan BIE16EFHRBZAFEESEME (B
Yu Ching, Eugene), for the Year, disclosed pursuant EEREITBRABLCEEL: RERFE
to Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and section SEZME)AT :
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2015: BE_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—HIL*F

=3

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
REAREESZ (FRASLARHNBANSH) BECHRER 2 ME :

Employer's

contribution

Estimated toa
money value retirement

Discretionary of other benefit
Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total

Hthflsz  EEHERK
ik e RETA fHHENBEE BURBER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR

Executive directors: HiTEE:
Kee Chor Lin s - 4,725 - 189 18 4,932
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene £ - 3,900 - 218 18 4,136
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TEH - 1,080 - - 18 1,098
Yeung Yuk Lun HaE - 2,100 - - 18 2,118

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

directors:

Mar, Selwyn SRR 400 = = = = 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy TR 360 - - - - 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David BEE 360 - - - - 360

1,120 11,805 = 407 2] 13,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12 EERRETHAEMS(E)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERESTHAEME(E)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014: BE—_T-—NWE+-_A=+—HIE
B

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REAEEES NERENBAREE)BEEAREK ME :

Employer's

contribution

Estimated toa

money value retirement

Discretionary of other benefit
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total

Efpflme  EEHERK
ik o BB fhata%EE  BIEEIER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TATL TAT ThL ThL

Executive directors: HTEE

Kee Chor Lin ke - 4,725 1,700 184 17 6,626
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene RTE - 3,900 190 174 17 4,281
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TEH - 1,080 10 - 17 1,107
Yeung Yuk Lun ok - 2,100 100 - 17 2,217

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE -

directors:

Mear, Selwyn SRR 400 - - - - 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy %Sl 360 - - - - 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David BEE 360 - - - - 360

1,120 11,805 2,000 358 68 15,351
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BAREER R ML (AR)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking (2014:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year (2014: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of
directors for making available the services of them
as a director of the Company (2014: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors
during the year (2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2014:
Nil).

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERNER

BRI EERERAR R HEME
N A E 2 E A BTS B Wk U A
BABRHN(ZF—0F : &)

EERIEREER
FABERNESENEMREBERR
BRIRFEZHE(CT—HF : £) -

RETESBEOE=TRH
RE
BERETAAREZREMAES
ZATEE S HEAFIB(ZF—MF :
&) -

BRNES ZEFZAEER
FHRESERERARBAZE
o BEERRAEMRZ 2ER

FA- BMEAEE  IEHEAER
RZEEFTCHEEBRRBAZE
F o EERREMRS(ZF—MF
&) e

EERRS  RHHENHZE
Kz
ARRERE RGBT L ARASE
AT R A AREFEE X R EEE
B B R HE 5 M 4R 3K 6 A (A B
DAFBEZEARS - REHAK(Z
T4 - ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

13 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 13
The five highest paid individuals during the Year included
four (2014: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 12 above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2014:
one) highest paid individual during the year were as
follows:

Salaries and allowances e KoERL
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAT
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B

hEREHHES
AFERNRAREHFHESREDSG (=2
—IF R EE  AWRSHI R
R EXHEI2m -

FREHB—R(ZT—0OF : —R)HE=#HHE
BHM BT

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
737 1,228

57 —

18 17

812 1,245

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals,
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as
follows:

Between HK$ 1,000,000 to 71,000,000/ T E

HK$1,499,999 1,499,999/8 7T
Between HK$500,000 to 1 F-500,00078 T2
HK$999,999 999,999/ 7T

BHMIEFE=RBE TIBMESAR 2 ABM

73
T

Number of employees
EEAH

2015
—E-RF

2014
—ZE—OF

No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the Year (2014: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

14

TAX 14
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the Year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Charge for the year: REFZH
Current: BNER
Hong Kong BA
The PRC Fh
Under-provision in prior years BTFERETR
Deferred (Note 32) RIE (A1 5E32)
Total tax charge for the year REFHEBIAZ

IR

BBNEBEHIREAFEREBHRIZ 5T ER
i FIE T R 16.5% ( —F—P04E : 16.5% )#
fi o Hofthih [ FE SR B i 1l 2 BB D IR AN S B AL
EFIERIEER 2BRTHE - BEBEERITE

) 2ERIEGIFE -

2015
—E-RF

HK$'000
TERT

2014
—ZE—OF
HK$'000
Tt

1,688 6,313
4,763 5,604
495 534
6,946 12,451
1,496 (291)
8,442 12,160

In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations
in the PRC, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC enjoy tax exemptions. All subsidiaries in the PRC are
subject to income taxes at applicable rates ranging from
20% to 25%.

REFEBAEHRERAER - AR RS T
RERZNE AR R ZERFESR o ELiE
NEBIRN F20% 2 25% 2 i A5 R BT

8% -
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AR IS ERAR M ()

14

TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries/

jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of

its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rates is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in
the respective countries

Lower tax rate for specific local
authority

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Under-provision in prior years

Recognition of tax losses

Utilisation of tax losses not previously
recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
recognised

Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's
effective rate

BREEAT(E51R), A

RERRERBEZREN2
BB RAEZBA

BiEEREERL
BIRHE
B ON
AR IRE R
BAFERBETR
RBIGEE
BRAERERBEER

BRNERR ZHHER

RERHBER

BAKBEERREFE L
BB

14

HiE (&)
fE AR A R E KB B A ) 48 & AT e B
R/ AVARER 2 A R B 2 R ATE F 2
BATIERY - BREERRAE 2 HIERY
HERIT

2015 2014
—E-RE —T-mF
HK$°000 % HK$'000
FHET Ak FHET
(37,396) 55,996
(8,894) 10,958
(1,011) 459
(1,972) (4,380)
3,825 4,356
495 534
(566) (610)
(323) (3,118)
1,808 -
15,080 3,961
8,442 (22.6) 12,160 21.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

14

TAX (CONTINUED)

The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and
an associate amounting to HK$439,000 (2014: tax credit
of HK$57,000) is included in “Share of results of joint
ventures” and “Share of results of an associate” in the
consolidated income statement.

The tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive (loss)/income is as follows:

Before
tax
BRBiAl
HK$'000
TiEx
Fair value gains: ARENE
- Land and buildings — T REF 12,936
- An available-for-sale investment ——EAHHERE 576
Currency translation differences ERER (129,427)

14

BiIE (&)

JEME & &2 KB4 N R B TB K 52.439,00078
TT(ZZF -4 : FiIEE£57,000%70) B 5+
AN ERZ[BhEEhECEE IRIE
E—EEE AR ZEE] -

EREM2E(ER) WS NEEHIEX
BT

2015
—E-1f T—0F
Before
Tax  After tax tax Tax  After tax

Ha BRBiR BR A ] (G333

HK$'000  HK$'000 [SHK$000" = HK$000™ “HK$ 000

TEL TRL THL THET TAL

(3,337) 9,599 6,701 (1,625) 5,076

- 576 358 - 358
(129,427) (1,756) - (1,756)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2EOSE) M (115915)

(3.337) (119,252 5303 (1,625) 3,678

Deferred tax (Note 32) EEFBMHE32)

(3,337) (1,625)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

15

16

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the loss for the Year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$45,095,000 (2014 profit of
HK$43,257,000), and the weighted average number of
478,280,000 (2014: 479,204,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the Year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. Diluted earnings per share for the Year was the
same as the basic earnings per share as the Company’s
share options outstanding during the Year were anti-
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$43,257,000. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation was 479,204,000 ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2014,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of 29,000 ordinary shares
is assumed to have been issued at nil consideration on the
deemed exercise of all share options during the year ended
31 December 2014.

DIVIDENDS

Interim — Nil (2014: 1.5 HK cents) per hE—F
ordinary share (ZZ—mEF

Proposed final — Nil (2014: 1.0 HK cents)  #URAKRE—=Z
per ordinary share (ZE—mF :

15

16

SR (EE) BF

BRER(ER) B IREARFRERS
AJE 1l 7R 4F & E58.45,095,00078 7T ( = Z — Y
£ ¢ %5 F43,257,0008 7T ) MR EE A
17 BAR 2 AN 19 %478,280,000/% (==
—PU4F : 479,204,0000%)5TH o

BREFRNTIABRKAENEE EELR
Pt % S B B BT B B AR AR I AR B
FHH - AR ARBAAFE ZRITEBRETIR
BE o BELTBRR  BAFE2EREEER
BREREAEBIERER -

HE-_Z-NE+—-A=+—HIEFEZEK
BSE BN IR R A R B R B A B &= T
43,257,000 AT E o FTERRA 2 @AM
OB AENEE—_T—NFE+_A=1+—8
I FERE 1T ERA%479,204,0004% © E25T
HEREARFRAFEAERR @ WEREEE
—E—NF+-_A=+—HIEFERNAZE
AR AR A ME T T {0 T AR (B B35 1T 2 LB AR i
¥ E/529,0008% °

Hﬁ/%\
2015 2014
—E-AfF ZE—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
.58 - 7,189
R0 ) = 4,792
= 11,981
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e T IRRMEE (18)

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y%E-  BERRKE

Machinery  Furniture Leasehold
and and Motor  improve- Construction
land  Buildings equipment fixtures  vehicles ments  in progress Total

14 BT HELRE HHREZE gH HENEEE  HRIE EH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tin TR Tin TR TiEn TR Tin Tin

2015 “-1%
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-RF-A-A
Cost or valuation A B LE 42,651 28151 1,225,341 35,690 18,124 136,936 3645 1,690,538
Accumulated depreciation 2iE - - (782979 (28,911) (14,705) (70,804) - (897,399
Net carrying amount FEFE 42,651 228,151 442,362 6,779 3419 66,132 3,645 793,139
Opening net carrying amount ~ E41EAFE 42,651 228,151 442,362 6,779 3419 66,132 3,645 793,139
Additions HE = 97 38,833 955 17 2,955 327 43,184
Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (Note 19) (Hi19) (5,590) (950) - - - - - (6,540)
Disposals e - - (229) (14) (352) - S (595)
Surplus on revaluation EftRH (1871) 14,807 - - - - - 12,936
Depreciation provided ERfERE
during the year (1,219) (5,402) (65,944) (1,229) (840) (14,070) - (88,704)
Transfers b - - 107 - - - (107) -
Exchange realignment EREE - (13,214)  (25,060) (382) (120) (3399) (216  (42.351)
Closing net carrying amount R EEFE 3391 223,489 390,069 6,149 2,124 51,618 3,649 711,069
At 31 December 2015: RZE-1F
ToA=+-8:
Cost or valuation HAEHEE 339N 23489 1,190,645 34,522 15,896 133,300 3649 1635472
Accumulated depreciation ZifirE - - (800576)  (28373)  (13772)  (81,682) - (924403
Closing net carrying amount ~ #REEFE 3971 223,489 390,069 6,149 2124 51,618 3,649 711,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% BRERRZEGE)
(CONTINUED)
Machinery  Furniture Leasehold
and and Motor ~ improve-  Construction
land  Buidings  equipment fixtures vehicles ments  in progress Total
i BF HKERRE HAREE g REmEEE  fEIRE &
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i T BT Fin T FiEn T i
2014 “EME
At 1 January 2014 R_Z-mE-A-H
Cost or valuation A B EE 43,131 2271930 1,188,249 34,941 17843 126,598 9319 1,648,011
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - - (11871) 21.722) (13,697) (58,515) - (818,645)
Net carrying amount ERSE 43,131 227930 469,538 7219 4,146 68,083 9319 829,366
Opening net carrying amount ~ E41EAFE 43131 227930 469,538 7219 4146 68,083 9319 829,366
Additions AE - 2,668 40,429 1320 491 5913 60 50,881
Disposals e - - (6) (25 (46) - - 1)
Surplus on revaluation EftRk (1) 6,719 - - - - - 6,701
Depreciation provided ERfERE
during the year (462) (8,832) (66,465) (1,451) (1,338) (12,360) - (90,908)
Transfers &% - 419 609 (255) 175 4729 (5,677) -
Exchange realignment B AT - (753) (1743) (29 9 233) (57) (2.824)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FXEAFE 42,651 228,151 442 362 6,779 3419 66,132 3,645 793,139
At 31 December 2014: R-Z-IE
t2A=+-8:
Cost or valuation A B EE 42,651 28151 122534 35,690 18,124 136,936 3645 1,690,538
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE - - (18979 (28911) (14705 (70,804) - (897.399)
Closing net carrying amount ~ EXEAFE 42,651 228,151 442 362 6,779 3419 66,132 3,645 793,139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR R ()

During the Year, the Group transferred an owner-occupied
property located in Hong Kong to an investment property
and rented it out (Note 19). The carrying amount of the
property approximates its fair value. The asset revaluation
reserve included in equity in respect of such property
on the date of transfer was HK$5,917,000, which was
transferred directly and immediately to retained earnings.

The Group’s remaining land and buildings were revalued
individually on 31 December 2015 by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at an aggregate value of HK$257,460,000
(2014: HK$270,802,000). A revaluation gain totalling
HK$12,936,000 (2014: HK$6,701,000), resulting from the
above valuations, has been credited to the relevant asset
revaluation reserve. Had these land and buildings been
carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, their carrying values would have been
approximately HK$159,457,000 (2014: HK$175,118,000).

For land and buildings located in Hong Kong, the best
evidence of the open market value is the current prices in
an open market for similar properties with adjustments,
if any. For those located in the PRC, there are no readily
identifiable market comparables. They are valued on the
basis of their depreciated replacement costs using the
depreciated replacement cost approach. At the end of
each reporting period, the directors update the assessment
of the open market value of each land and building, taking
into account the most recent valuations performed by
independent professionally qualified valuers.

RNEER - AEEB —BURNES 2 EE8H
MEEREREETHELHAEFE19) -
ZOEROSBEEERNAERS c REEA
MR EEMEFT AR EEEGHH#ER
5,917,000/87C « W EZRIRERERE A o

AEBKRTSELIMWREFERBLEES
ERGEMEAZANMITERARER
HR-_Z—AF+-_A=+—RHZHBEA
257,460,000 7t ( —Z — PO 4 : 270,802,000
BIL) c Pl EELEE M K emE 6 H
12,936,000/8 7L (==& — I 4F : 6,701,000/
JL) ' BRTABEEEGRHE - BREZELS
A FARE 2 pACR R 5T ITE RORE 1R
BE - AIEBRME(ERE4) A 159,457,000/ 7T (=
ZT—PO4 : 175,118,000/7C) °

SURNBEZ LHWEETME  ARMEZR
ERRBARFMS LELUME 2 ERHEME)
BITER - ERUAFEZ T REF - BR
EERS AT AR 2 15 Al B LL BB - 8AA
?ﬁ%iﬁﬁk$ EATESER A RELEETIE
B - REREHREERES  EFSEHEEL
WRBFZ ARMEZHE - EREF REY
BXLBRMAEMSIIETZMAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
The following table analysed the land and buildings carried

at revalued amount, by valuation method.

17

Fair value hierarchy

KEUEDAERE

T REF

Recurring fair value measurements
Land and buildings
31 December 2015 —E-Af+=ZA=t+-H

31 December 2014 —T-NFE+-A=+—H

W% BERRE(E)

TRAGEEDITIRE[R SRR T RE
Fo

DHERBR

Fair value measurements using
MATISEETZAAETE
Quoted prices
in active
markets for
identical
assets
(Level 1)
HEREEZ
SER T IH MR E
(5—8)

Significant
other
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
HittEATHER
BWAE
(5=8)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
EXTABER
WARE
(B=F8)
(Note)

(Hiat)
HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TET

257,460

270,802

Note: For fair value measurement under level 3, inputs for the

asset or liability are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 during the
Year.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI SEEERA T

Hret - BME=ZRBTZARBEEMNS BEXR

BB ABURY AR B M S8R (B A
ATBEBARUR) RER -

AEEZBRANEREBAABERER 2 HE
BZEHMABEE R - ERAREE -

REEN F—E F_ERF=-EMIE
815 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)

At 1 January 2015

Additions

Surplus on revaluation

Depreciation provided
during the year

Transfer to investment properties
(Note 19)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2015

Total revaluation (deficit)/gain

for the year (debited)/credited to
the revaluation reserve

RZE—RF—H—H
2N

EHAE%
FRFTERE

BRERBMEHZ19)

B 5 R

(08)/FHAEAREEL
FRER(BA),
Wt 4B %E

W% -~ BERRE(E)

NMAEATABRBABR(E=E)ZARE

stE

Land and buildings

T REF
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB A st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THET TET
50,500 220,302 270,802
- 97 97
(1,217) 14,153 12,936
(1,443) (5,178) (6,621)
(6,540) - (6,540)
- (13,214) (13,214)
41,300 216,160 257,460
(1,217) 14,153 12,936
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% BERSREE)
(CONTINUED)

Land and buildings

T REF
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB Ll st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT THIT THET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-NF—A—H 50,500 220,561 271,061
Additions R - 2,668 2,668
Surplus on revaluation EEp 3 587 6,114 6,701
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year (587) (8,707) (9,294)
Transfers K - 419 419
Exchange realignment P& 5 5 - (753) (753)
At 31 December 2014 NI
+=-A=+—H 50,500 220,302 270,802
Total revaluation gain for SPAEEEZ
the year credited to FASGmeE
the revaluation reserve 587 6,114 6,701
Level 3 fair values of land and buildings in Hong Kong BB TMREFZE=EBAAEFNREZELR
have been derived using the direct comparison approach, TR o EELLBUAEAR R BB TS AT
which basically uses the comparable sales transactions as BRI B REERSEBRIERRE °

available in the relevant market to derive the fair value of
the properties.

Level 3 fair values of land and buildings in the PRC have PR REFCE=EBARBNRNEEE
been derived using the depreciated replacement cost RAEZER o FTEEEMAEAARREFER L
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market 2 TEZ (AT AER  BSNEEREBEY
value for the existing use of the land, plus the current cost ZERRA - AR A E BB KRB EH
of replacement of the existing structures less deductions FRzBREREB(L2INIE -

for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

18 PREPAID LAND PREMIUM

18 THEEFANK

The movements in prepaid land premium during the year FAT A ESTENTRZ EEAT -

were as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January
Amortisation during the year
Addition

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At fair value

At 1 January

Transfer from owner-occupied property
(Note 17)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Gain on fair value adjustment

Exchange realignment

At 31 December

2015 2014

—F-IF —FmF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHBT

R—A—BzEE+HE 77,851 31,753
F B (1,643) (815)
37 = 46,817
P& 5 (4,480) 96
R+ A=+—HZEE+E 71,728 77,851

19 REYHE

2015 2014

—Z2—-RF —ZE—OF

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FET FHBT

BRARE
»—A—8 138,872 83,004
SR EET ARAWMENFE7)

6,540 -

U B — R B A B - 31,522
DAREFAEWES (525) 24,078
P& 5 (3,357) 268
B+-RA=+—8H 141,530 138,872
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19

(@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

REWE(E)

(a)

REREMERNERREIR 2SR

Year ended 31 December
BE+T=-A=1tT—HLEE

Rental income HE WA

Direct operating expenses from EERSWAZMEZ
property that generated rental BESERX
income

2015 2014
—E-RE —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
4,597 4,149
(745) (1,091)
3,852 3,058

(b) Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. In
the current year, the valuations are performed
by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited and Roma
Appraisals Limited. At the end of each reporting
period, the directors update their assessment of the
fair value of each property, taking into account the
most recent independent valuations. The directors
determine a property’s value within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Bi#ARH:EBEAER A A

(b)

fhEEXE

AEESZILEF-RREKREYMER
BBIUMEE RAFEA - HEAR
FERETEITER A B R &S BT
EERAPET - EFRERE R
RREEMNNEHESENELAEZ
FHh o BEREE RO ZBIUMGE -
ERENREZARERFHEEEY
FoEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A U RR M (E)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) MHEEEE)

For the completed investment properties, their
fair values are generally derived using the direct
comparison approach, which basically uses the
comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Where such information is not available
the directors consider information from a variety of
sources including:

0) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(iii) capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

For the under development investment property,
its fair value is derived using the residual approach.
This valuation method is essentially a means of
valuing the land by reference to its development
potential by deducting development costs, land
premium, together with developer’s profit and risk
from the estimated capital value of the proposed
development assuming completed as at the date of
valuation.

MREZTREVEMS EAAES
FHAERLBORER - ERLER
EAXEFAEETS LISz AT E
KEREEXSEBMELAAE - MK
BERSEEEN  AEFEEEERA
SHERKRZER - 81

(i) TREE 2 MERRERN S L
ZIRITEBRIRUDERTER
RS B2 HER - A
RiRZEEZRMELFAE

(i) RRARREIME 2 7] FE b5t
HETZHRRBESRERA -

(iif) KRR 2 2 (5T F s G
T2 EREWATBR R RS
BEIMBHZERELE -

RERTEEVEMS - EARER
RRSREEEER - ZLEHEEE
ERFEERBRNMEEREK
FBIVRBERAA - THHE AR
EREMAETEAEE LGN MER - M
SDEHBRENH T METHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 KREYHE(E)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b)
The valuation gain is included in “Other gains, net” HEREETALERGZERAZ EAib
in the consolidated income statement (Note 6). The Wz 588 | (FisE6) « TRAMTAME
following table analyses the investment properties EIR AR EBRZIREYE -
carried at fair value by valuation method.

HEEE(HE)

Fair value hierarchy AREER

126

Recurring fair value
measurements

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2015 using
R-B-RF+ZA=+—RARATIREETZ

AR R

Quoted prices
in active
markets for
identical
assets
(Level 1)
HREEZ
SEIET IR E
(5—8)
HK$'000
THET

Significant
other
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
HithEAEE
WARE
(5=8)
HK$'000
FHET

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
EXTAHR
BABE
(B=E)
HK$'000
THET

Investment properties REME
— Completed residential -BRIFENE
properties — PRC — - - 1,671
— Completed commercial —BRIHENE
properties — HK —&8 - - 87,340
— Under development —BEREEYE
commercial property —m
-PRC - - 52,519
- - 141,530
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 BEWEE)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) MHEEE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEHR(E)

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2014 using
RZZ—MEFEF+=A=+—BFATIIEELETZ

NREFE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable  unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEREEz HMEAUEE SEATAIEE
a5 R E B ABUR i ABR
(F—F) (F=/E) (=)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Recurring fair value REMRREE
measurements
Investment properties wEME
- Completed residential —BRIEEME
properties — PRC —m - - 1,698
— Completed commercial -ORImEDE
properties — HK —&A - - 81,400
— Under development —BERHENE
commercial property —
- PRC - - 55,774
- - 138,872
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and REEZBERANEHBRER AR EERZHE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the BrEH R EEE R - R A RS ANE
date of the event or change in circumstances that funf)
caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 AEERN F—E F_ERFEZEZHETE

during the Year. EEVEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 BEYEE)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) MHEEE(E)
Fair value measurements using significant MABERTABEERABBEZAR
unobservable inputs ==

Investment properties

REME
Hong Kong PRC Total
B HE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHET THET
At 1 January 2015 RNZE—RF—HA—H 81,400 57,472 138,872
Transfer from owner-occupied BT g RAYEER
property (Note 17) (Hi#17) 6,540 = 6,540
(Loss)/gain from fair value NAERAB(EE), WS
adjustment (600) 75 (525)
Exchange realignment [& 5 - (3,357) (3,357)
At 31 December 2015 R-T—HF
+=-A=+—H 87,340 54,190 141,530

Total valuation (loss)/gain for  FRFERIZTEZ

the year included in profit BEAMER

or loss for assets held at the [EmlaFE ]2

end of the year, under FREEER),

“other gains, net” e ez (600) 75 (525)

Change in unrealised (loss)/gain FRERFHZ
for the year included in profit ~ BEztAMERZ

or loss for assets held at FRAERE(FE),/
the end of the year Wz ) (600) 75 (525)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 KREWHEE)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) MHEEE(E)
Fair value measurements using significant MABERTABEERABBEZAR
unobservable inputs (Continued) Bt & (&)

Investment properties

REYE
Hong Kong PRC Total
BB HE FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT T
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MmF—H—H 81,300 1,704 83,004
Acquisition U - 31,522 31,522
Gain from fair value adjustment A7 EFHZEWER 100 23,978 24,078
Exchange realignment e AR - 268 268
At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF
+-A=+—~H 81,400 57,472 138,872
Total valuation gain for HRFEREFZ
the year included in profit BEFTAREE
or loss for assets held at the [E et FaE |
end of the year, under ZFERNHE
“other gains, net” Wssasa 100 23,978 24,078

Change in unrealised gain for ~ FRERFAEZ

the year included in profit PN e
or loss for assets held at FRREE U EH
the end of the year 100 23,978 24,078

Annual Report 2015 3 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

(c) Valuation techniques (o) {H{EF:M

For completed investment properties, the
valuation was derived using the direct comparison
approach. Sales prices of comparable properties
in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot. The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the fair value, and vice
versa.

For the investment property which is pending for
redevelopment, the valuation was derived using
the residual approach based on the Group's latest
development plan using the following significant

REZTREMEMNS @ HAENBE
BRIUBORZEN - PRI ZATE LR
MEEEHBRER 2 ZR(IMEKR
PEHBE - ZEBEEZREZBA
BEAEGFTERZER - FF R
REBES  DAERS  RZTFA -

AFEEREMENS @ [ETIHAE
RREEZE - MATIERTHEAR
BARBRRAKBERARRASZE
B o

unobservable inputs.

Gross development value The valuation primarily relied on the direct comparison approach, based
BRBE on the sale prices of comparable properties with adjustment factors. The
higher the gross development value, the higher the resulting fair value,
and vice versa.
HEFERBEELERE  ERTENBRYECEAERRET - TRAEE
Mm-S ARERR - R2ZIA °

Costs to complete These are generally consistent with the internal budget prepared by the
SE LA Group's finance department, based on management’s experience and
knowledge of local market conditions. The higher the estimated costs,
the lower the fair value, and vice versa.
ZERAZ BT RN EENGIPIENE R ELR K E MR A# AR 2 A
TBE B o [AETAAMSE - ARBEBE - RZIFA o

Land premium Land premium is assessed based on the difference in land values arising
THbtES from the change in land use, which is subject to concessions according
to the prevailing local government policies. The higher the land premium,
the lower the fair value, and vice versa.
T RS DER T RS E e E A 2 TIEEERETIE  AXRRE
THABRBERzER - tihHEeHE - AnEBE  RZIFA -
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A U RR M (E)

() Valuation techniques (Continued) () fHERM(E)

Developer's profit
ERE R

Completion dates
Eem =

Represents the developer’s expectation on the risk and return of the
underlying redevelopment project. The margin is derived based on
valuer’s experiences with reference to the margin of similar projects in
similar cities. The higher the profit margin, the lower the fair value, and
vice versa.

FEERASAEAERER 2Rk KRB AL o FIEERTDREEERLRL
DELPE T 2 FOIE B FUBRES - FBEMS - RREBE - R275

IR o

The underlying redevelopment scheme requires approval or permits from
relevant government authorities at various stages of the development
process, including initial design, proposed land use, commissioning, and
compliance with environmental regulations. Based on management’s
experience on similar developments, all relevant permits and approvals are
expected to be obtained. However, the expected completion date of the
development may vary depending on, among other factors, the timeliness
of obtaining approvals and any remedial action required by the Group.
The later the completion dates, the lower the fair value, and vice versa.
TR E R B B RAERR S [ BRI AR A B AT MR B/ ST AT - BAEWIIAER
i BZRTHAR  AeRETRREE - RETEEHEUERIER 2K
5 - TEHARESFR ARG Al ALK - AT - 2B RIB B EET T T A HE T
(B BEEMmER) REESHE R RSB ER 2 EAHERIERTE © 7
T HEMSE - AREBIE  RZIFA -

There were no changes to the valuation techniques FA - (HERMI A EE) o

during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20 THHERE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TpuE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FABT
At 1 January wW—H—H 13,881 12,258
Addition R - 3,632
Change in fair value transferred to equity —ERERERE 7 DA EEE 575 358
Exchange realignment fE A (88) 27)
Impairment loss recognised in RIRA WS RER ZREEE
consolidated income statement (Bi#te)
(Note 6) (1,667) (2,340)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8 12,701 13,881
The fair values of the Group'’s available-for-sales financial AEBAHEEESRHEE L A FEDRERS
assets are based on cash flows discounted using a rate ’EZ TisHEERBRREMGIREZHEN
based on the market interest rate and the risk premium EHE  cHARBEAAAEEBRE=E (M=
specific to such investments. The fair values are within level 41) °

3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 41).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

21

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 EREE

Computer
software Total
BB et

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET

At 1 January 2015, net of accumulated WZZE—HFE—H—H "

amortisation N RET Y 1,890 1,890
Amortisation provided during the year BN S (777) (777)
At 31 December 2015, net of R-_E—RF+-_A=+—H"

accumulated amortisation kR 2y 1,113 1,113
At 31 December 2015 R_E—RF+-_A=+—H
Cost KAME 3,885 3,885
Accumulated amortisation Sty (2,772) (2,772)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 1,113 1,113

Computer
software Total
B HET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated N-_ZT—mME—F—H -

amortisation bR Rt #Ess 1,877 1,877
Addition NE 729 729
Amortisation provided during the year F N S R (716) (716)
At 31 December 2014, net of N-ZE—NE+—-_A=+—H -

accumulated amortisation N REt Y 1,890 1,890
At 31 December 2014 NR-ZE-E+=-A=+—H
Cost KAE 3,885 3,885
Accumulated amortisation 2=ty (1,995) (1,995)
Net carrying amount RS 1,890 1,890

Amortisation of HK$777,000 (2014: HK$716,000) BE8H777,0008 7T (=& — U4 :716,000%7T)
is included in the “administrative expenses” of the AR KR ITIRER] -

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

22 SUBSIDIARIES 22
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

KB~ E
EEMBATEROT :

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of equity
registration and issued and paid-up/ attributable to the Principal
operations registered capital Company activities
HEMAYL/ ERE BRTRARRAEE/ RAREMERA
Ty HfER BAl TEER
2015 2014
—g-1f [ 0F
Accord Advance Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
HEERRE Hong Kong ERRI0ET REER
EBRLES /B
Dongguan Manixon New Materials The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
and Components Company H U5$9,590,000 sale of electronic
Limited* & 79,590,000 7T components
REBNEHTHTHERAE HERBET Ll
Foshan Rifeng Electronic Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
BLALETERAE i USD1,000,000 sale of electronic
FHBEA1,000,000% T components
RERHES Tl
Jiangxi Telexon Electronics The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* h RMB40,000,000 sale of electronic
IAEEEETERAT HER components
AR#40,000,0007 SEREEE Tl
Johnstone International Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~~ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
YR ERRRER LA Hong Kong ERRIET REER
EBRLEE /B
Long Trade (Macao Commercial Macau Registered 100 100 Trading of raw
Offshore) Limited B MOP100,000 materials
REEH(RPIBREERS) FHE7R100,0002F 7 BERMH
BRAT
Man Fat International Trading The PRC Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
(Shanghai) Company Limited* o US$200,000 components
BEERZS(LB)ERAA & 4200,000% BES Tt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

22  SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

22

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(Continued):

Man Jin Electronics (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*
EEET(RINERAF

Man Yue (China) Investment Limited*

E(PE)REARAR

Man Yue Electronics Company Limited
EHNETARARA

Man Yue Holdings (BVI) Limited

Man Yue Technology (China) Ltd*
BB (PE)BRAR

Man Yue Technology Limited
BHRHRAERAR

Manixon Electronics Company Limited
ENEETERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

AL/ R
RenE

The PRC
PE

The PRC
PE

Hong Kong
He

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EBRAES /BB

The PRC
RE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EERAHE/ B

Hong Kong
&b

Nominal value of

issued and paid-up/

registered capital

BRTRBRRAEE/

HREx

B8~ 5] (4K)
EEMBATEROT | (8)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the
Company
AAFEERS

Principal
activities

[zp:pd FRER

2015 2014

Registered
HK$3,500,000
FME73,500,000E 7

Registered
US$120,000,000
120,000,005

Ordinary HK$2,
Non-voting deferred
HK$3,000,000

LT
ERZEELR
3,000,000 7C

Ordinary US$10,000
ZiE1710,0005T

Registered
US$48,000,000
£ 4 74548,000,0005 T

Ordinary US$10
LRRI0ET

Ordinary HK$1
LRRIAT

100

100

100

100

100

100

100 Trading of electronic
components
BEETH

100 Investment holding
REER

100 Trading of electronic
components
EEETIH

100 Investment holding
REER

100 Investment holding
REER

100 Investment holding
RERR

100 Trading of electronic
components
BES it
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

22  SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22 MEARE)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows FEMBARERNAT : (8)
(Continued):
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of equity
registration and issued and paid-up/ attributable to the Principal
operations registered capital Company activities
ML/ R BRORMERAEE/ FAREERE
Ty EfER B TEER
2015 2014
“E-F
MMS Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of electronic
ERETERAA & LRRIAET components
BEETH
MMS Logistics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Trading of electronic
B iB1710,0008 7T components
BES it
Rifeng Qingyuan Electronic Co., Ltd.* T ThePRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale
B2(EE)ETERAA i HK$80,000,000 of raw materials
HMER BEREERMH
80,000,000/ 7T
Rihong (Yaan) Electronics Co., Ltd.* 7 ThePRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale
BA(EZ)ETERLA i U5$22,000,000 of raw materials
HMER BERHERIH
22,000,000 7
Samxon Electronic Components Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
CRETEHERAT & LakAET components
BEETH
Samxon Electronics (Dongguan) T ThePRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Co, Ltd.* # US§96,775,000 sale of electronic
ER=EEF(RE)ERAT FHRER components
96,775,000% 7 RERHET Ll
Searange Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of equity
BEREERAA B LERAET investments
BERARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

22  SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22 KMEBLE(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows FEMBARERAT : (8)
(Continued):

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of equity

registration and issued and paid-up/ attributable to the Principal
operations registered capital Company activities

AL/ R BRTRBRRAEE/ RRREERE
RenE HREx AL E23 3

2015 2014

Splendid Skill Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong LERI0FET RARR
ERRLES /B
Stand New Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
UHPEBRAR B LRRIAET REER
Starzeon Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of electronic
EEXSTARAH Tk LEmRET components
EEE it
Starzeon Electronics (Dongguan) 1 ThePRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. * & US$15,000,000 sale of electronic
BEXEF(RE)ERAA HMER components
15,000,000% 70 RERBEE Tl
Starzeon Electronics Taiwan Republic of China Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
Company Limited* HERE TWD10,000,000 components
REEEXETRNERAH AR EEETIH
10,000,000%7 2%
TradeUNIT Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 100 100 Trading of raw materials
PEEBRAT Hong Kong HK$9,500,000 BERMH

EERUHEE/AE  LRER9,500,0008T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(Continued):

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

EMAYL/ ERE
R

22 MiBATE(E)
FEWBATEROT : (&)

Nominal value of
issued and paid-up/

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Principal
registered capital Company activities
BRTRARRAEE/ RAREERE
EfER BAl TEXER

2015 2014
“Z-1F (25 EE

Wuxi Man Yue Electronics The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* a5 1S$30,000,000 sale of electronic
ENEREFARAT HER components
30,000,000%7 RERHEE Tl
X-CON Electronics Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Trading of electronic
X-CONEFER AT Hong Kong LRRIET components
ABRLES/ B EESTIh
Xinjiang Join Yue Electronics New The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale
Materials Company Ltd.* H US$8,000,000 of raw materials
HERAEFIMHERAR FHE 78,000,005 SEREERMH
Yuk Wah Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$80,000 100 100 Investment holding
FETTERRA i LiR05:80,000/5 T RERR
BRI ER AR The PRC Registered 75 75 Manufacture and sale
h RMB10,000,000 of chemical materials
HMER SEREE( 2R
AR10,000,0007
Notes: et :
1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned 1 Ut S A R Ty ARIR R BUA R RSN
enterprises under the PRC law. WEDE
2 Shares held directly by the Company. 2 RAREERE 2D -
3 The company name in English is a direct translation of the * KX AR ZBEAEMAXEE 2 EES

registered Chinese name for the purpose of identification.

i The company name in Chinese is a direct translation of the
registered English name for the purpose of identification.

All the subsidiaries of the Company are limited liability

companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the Year or formed a substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group.

# 0 EHEER -

9 PXAFEWREMAEXARIEED
i BRI

ARRFAEMBAREABEREERTR -

ERAIIRZARBMBARNEERARER

FEAFEREIERASEEEFEERH
D ZMIBARA]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELEZRE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 95,916 105,006
Loans to a joint venture BT —HEEEZER 96,989 102,760
Due from joint ventures EURAERE T FIA 34,438 38,305
Due to joint ventures ERtE S FIE (19,780) (20,339)

The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from and due to BT HAELEZER  BRKEMEGED

joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ¥ZRBEDEERR - £ B ABRERSIER S

on demand or per trading credit terms except: EEHER - A TRRSD -

(a) Loans amounting to HK$68,169,000 (2014: (a) 5 %068,169,000/8 70 ( = — 4 & :
HK$73,940,000) are interest-bearing at a rate of 73,940,000/ 7T ) 2 ERRIRFFE6.15
6.15% (2014: 6.15%) per annum. B(=ZZ—W%F : 6.15/F)5t8 °

(b) Included in amount due to joint ventures are trade (b) ENELECEZRBHBIERMNEE
payables to joint ventures of HK$19,780,000 (2014: 327 B E 5 ERE19,780,000% 7T
HK$20,240,000). An ageing analysis of the trade (ZZ—M4 : 20,240,000%7T) ° B
payables to joint ventures as at the balance sheet HEA RERZHHGECEMNEE
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: TEBIEFRRIOTAT ¢

2015 2014
—E-EHf —E-MmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Trade payables: [T E SR
1-3 months —Z==fdA 19,780 100 20,240 100

19,780 100 20,240 100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

23  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELECKRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the joint ventures, all of which are held FERWBARMERE AECEERNT

indirectly through subsidiaries, are as follows:

Percentage of
MEIREZBAL

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of issued shares/ registration and Owner-ship Voting Profit  Principal
registered capital operations interest power sharing  activities

BRORG/EMERHE  ERAL/ERREERY  fERER REE  BAER  TERH

Ever Reliance Industrial Issued capital of 100 shares of  Hong Kong 48 50 48 Investment
Investments Limited HK$1 each holding
("Ever Reliance”)

REIEREERAR 100REREEETZ &R REER
(BH)) ERIRA

Nan Tong Xin Cheng Registered capital of The PRC 49 33 49 Manufacture
Electronics Company HK$6,080,000 and sale of
Ltd. raw materials

HENAETARAR & 76,080,000 7T e BUERAERH

£
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

23

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group'’s joint ventures:

Share of the joint ventures’ assets
and liabilities:

REEEEZRE(H)

TEREMAAKES LR ZMBERRE

2015
—E-RE

2014
—E—QmEF
HK$'000
FET

HK$°000
FTET

BIEREEXZEERARE

Non-current assets IERBEE 159,894 173,836

Current assets TRENEE 23,595 15,891

Current liabilities BB & (72,705) (68,932)

Non-current liabilities ERBERE (14,868) (15,789)
Net assets BEFEE 95,916 105,006
Share of the joint ventures’ results: e G & 35

Total income FEA N 57,777 57,809

Total expenses B (59,073) (57,077)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (EE), 77 (1,296) 732
Other comprehensive loss Hth 2 HEE (7,794) (456)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(EE)WanigiE (9,090) 276

Share of net assets EBEEEFRE
2015 2014
—B-EE —E-mE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

At 1 January H—A—H 105,006 111,757
Share forfeited for acquisition of Ue B8 — P B A A

an subsidiary FTE 2 Bkt = (7,027)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (ER),/5 75 (1,296) 732
Other comprehensive loss HEth2HEEE (7,794) (456)
At 31 December Rt+t—A=1+—H 95,916 105,006

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
investments in the joint ventures, and no contingent

liabilities of the joint ventures themselves.

AEETENBELRIEERBIRAR
B MeEEEERFIVETMNIRAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23 REELEZRE(H)
(CONTINUED)
Set out below are the summarised financial information
of Ever Reliance, which is accounted for using the equity
method and is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group.

TXEINREZHBHERBR - REFH AR
ENE  WRERAREZTBREDRE

2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx

Summarised balance sheet HEEEBER
Non-current assets IEMENEE 289,818 307,782
Current assets (excluding cash and RBEE(TBEERE N
cash equivalents) R&ZEY) = 3,881
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRSEED 7,882 359
Current financial liabilities (excluding mETHas
trade and other payables and (TBEENESERR
provisions) Hopth A SRIE e ) (68,169) (73,940)
Other current liabilities (including HivmEhaE
trade and other payables (BIEENESERR
and provisions) LA ST ROE I ) (32,789) (28,643)
Non-current financial liabilities ERBeRERE (30,600) (30,600)
Other non-current liabilities HiIERBEE (30,973) (32,893)
Net assets BEFE 135,169 145,946
Summarised statement of HE2mE(EE), Mk
comprehensive (loss)/income
Revenue A 14,912 11,363
Depreciation e (434) (441)
Interest income FMERA 36 21
Interest expense FEZH (4,016) (4,463)
Income tax credit FTiSfiEe = 946
Profit for the year NEF 1,368 1,092
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEE (12,144) (703)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(ER), W iEsm (10,776) 389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group'’s shared portion of joint ventures
excluding Ever Reliance:

(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE(FR),5F
Other comprehensive loss Hib 2 HEEE

2HE(BE) R

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

REEEEZRE(H)

TRMEAEERGEAELR(TRERE) S

BT EEREE
2015 2014
—EB-FHE —E—ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
(1,953) 208
(1,964) (118)
(3,917) 90

24 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 24

Share of net assets EIEEEFE

Due from an associate

JEU — B & R BIRRIR

R—BBEQRAZRE

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E-—MF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
THET TR
72,438 76,671
3,651 38,431

The amount due from an associate is trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

Particulars of the associate, which is held indirectly through
a subsidiary, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Bal A

Particulars of
issued shares held

RRCBIRNZHE

28,845,302 ordinary
shares of
TWD10 each
28,845,302/
SREEI0HAE L
TER

Republic of China
RERE

Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd.
BRETROARLA

JEW —Fl g 2
%5 B E R -

i — B A RREERE 2B S AR ERA
T~

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the Group
AEEELFERESRAL

2015 2014
“2-1% —E-|mF

Principal
activities

IERH

43.16% 43.16%  Trading of electronic

components
EES Tl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

24 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 24
(CONTINUED)
The Group's share of the results of its associate, which is
unlisted, and its aggregated assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities, are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Revenue A

Profit for the year (including
negative goodwill)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hiv2m(E1E), s
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2mE(E5E) WEesE

AERGN(BEEHE)

R—EBE QR 2RE(R)

REBAL I L ME AR SE R
E(REEE RAENT

Share of net assets

mw—A—H
AERGN(BEEHER)

At 1 January

Profit for the year (including
negative goodwill)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H

Hipzm(&E), M

2015 2014
—B-HF —EB-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FH
125,472 135,039
(53,034) (58,368)
97,248 119,483
544 1,221
@,777) 5,653
(4,233) 6,874
A RERE
2015 2014
—g-H% —g-mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THET
76,671 69,797
544 1,221
@,777) 5,653
72,438 76,671

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
investments in the joint ventures, and no contingent
liabilities of the joint ventures themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

25

26

INVENTORIES EE
2015 2014
—EB-AfF —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T
Raw materials ERE 192,364 180,635
Work in progress TERE 83,640 90,698
Finished goods RIAK oA 187,514 178,261
463,518 449,594
TRADE RECEIVABLES PEUN & 5 BRFX
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 352,923 319,450
Provision for impairment of FEUE R E R
trade receivables (9,138) (8,217)
343,785 311,233

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
90 days, extending up to 150 days for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. Credit risk was hedged mainly through
credit insurance policies.

REEBHRERFE R GKEREZAEERRN -
RS —RAEBEMNK - FEH—RKA0
X FERFAUERERZI150K - BEEF
HRERSEERE - NEEBUIE MARKEZ
FEMGRIB M5 BRG] - Rk A S B 5205
FERBRERE - 2 HERA 8 E BT
HigESR - AR EHUR A R AL 2 EKRE SR
FRERETRES AT ESKEEES
R - BB SERAEE - EERBREES
BIEERBERE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

26 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26 PEWREZERERM(E)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the REEH @ BAREHBAEZEKRE SRR
balance sheet date, based on the payment due date and (N RERRHE ) BREE DT O T -

net of provision for doubtful debts, is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-FHF “Z-|mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Current and within BIVER K2 A SR ERRR 7

payment terms 240,797 70 227,811 73
1-3 months past due wE1ZE3EA 82,967 24 52,618 17

4-6 months past due wHIAZ6fE A 2,908 1 19,226
7-12 months past due BE7E12(8 A 773 - 7,975 3
Over 1 year past due 16 BRER A F 16,340 5 3,603 1
343,785 100 311,233 100

The movements in provision for impairment of trade JEWE B IR FEREE T -

receivables are as follows:

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT TR

At 1 January w—A—H 8,217 8,158
Impairment losses recognised EMRZRERR 5,056 3,954
Amount written off as uncollectible ANA] Y Bl R i R (525) -
Impairment losses reversed ERE 2 RERR (3,493) (3,891)
Exchange realignment M 5 R (117) (4)

At 31 December Rt+t—_A=1+—H 9,138 8,217
As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of RZZT—RFT+ZH=+—H " 13,548,000
HK$ 13,548,000 (2014: HK$11,395,000) were impaired, for BIT(ZZ—MF : 11,395,000/ 7T ) 2 FE U
which, provision of HK$9,138,000 (2014: HK$8,217,000) B OBERERE - MAKEE LT IR E
has been made. The individually impaired trade receivables 9,138,000/ 7L ( = F — U 4 : 8,217,000 78
relate to customers that were in financial difficulties, in 7C) ° ERIRERKE SRR AR H
default or delinquency in payments and only a portion of BRI £E - #6/R s BR ST R R TR ER R A K [B1 56

the receivables is expected to be recovered. 1 FEYRIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

26

27

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

26

Current and within payment terms BNER R M- SR ERBR 1A
1-3 months past due BE1E3ME A

4-6 months past due B HE4Z= 616 A

7-12 months past due 7= 1218 A
Over 1 year past due BRI

FEUN E 2 AR (4F)
WAR = R E 2 EUE 2 BR F ORI D A 1A
™

2015 2014
—E—REF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TH&T
240,797 227,811
82,967 50,664
2,908 18,002

731 7,975
11,972 3,603
339,375 308,055

Receivables that were current and within payment terms
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27

BIER R A SR EARR P 2 FE MR TR TS 20 BRI 3L 38
BHRRLEZIAETRERS

BHEERE RESR BN EAEER R
HRPEBZETBLRF - REBELR
ARREERHBARZSHERIELIRER
B RAEEERTEREAEE  MEKRDBR
AR EHRE -

LAREFARBRZEHEE

2015 2014
—EB-REF et B3

HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Hong Kong listed equity investments, at ~ FB_FHIRARE - i&H{E

market value

51 59

The above equity investments were classified as held for
trading at 31 December 2014 and 2015.

B ARER —E-—OFR—E-—AF+—
A=1+—RBEAKFEERER -
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28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28 {THEE€®TIA
2015 2014
—=E—AF —E2-mF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE =0
HK$’'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T F#ET FET FET
Analysed into: DT
Forward currency contracts RHAEIES 4 - - - 585
Interest rate swap 1| 2= 451 B - 15,764 - 16,253
- 15,764 - 16,838
Portion classified as current 8348 A BN - (5,040) - (5,631)
Non-current portion IEmBIEB - 10,724 - 11,207

At 31 December 2014, the Group held forward currency
contracts for managing expected future operating use,
purchases from suppliers and sales to customers in the
PRC. The Group also has two (2014: two) interest rate
swap agreements in place with a notional amount of
HK$200,000,000 (2014: HK$200,000,000) to manage
certain exposure to changes in interest rate in relation to
bank loans.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in the interest
rate swap agreements at 31 December 2015 has been
determined on the basis of valuation carried out by an
independent qualified valuer, Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited (2014: Same), through the application of the
Black’s Model.

The net changes in the fair value of forward currency
contracts and interest rate swap contracts which did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting for accounting
purposes amounting to HK$4,062,000 were charged
(2014: HK$5,736,000) to the consolidated income
statement during the Year.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Bi#ARH:EBEAER A A

R-ZE—WNFEF+_A=+—8B AEEHE
REPEB A A - AR TE R R AE A B A
EEEERRARTFPHECZEEERERARE - K
SEZTEMG(ZE—UE : WD) A
200,000,00078 70 ( == —PU4F : 200,000,000
BIL)ZFREHEL - LEBE THETE
SRR FIE=EEFER

R-E—FAF+-A=+—H  AEERHX
HHEIA 4R E 2 AAEE BB A B R GER
REFEERART(CE—N4E : HR)EBRE
BRANEENIR T HEEETE

HESTEMNME @ AEEERGERERTH
PREEE AT RIBREZ RIS KA
ERRBEYRAFEAZ AR BEEEFEN
4 4,062,00078 7T ( ==& — P £ : 5,736,000/8
JT) °
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29

TIME DEPOSIT, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances e MBI

Time deposits within 3 months =B AR Z EHER
Cash and cash equivalents HE MREZEY
Time deposits over 3 months =1E A A k2 E Bt R

29

EHER  RERASSEY

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—{F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHT
233,791 256,767
114,006 144,072
347,797 400,839
11,936 12,676
359,733 413,515

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits range from one day to three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

As at the balance sheet date, the amount of time deposit,
cash and cash equivalents denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB") was HK$119,685,000 (2014: HK$149,306,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange the RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

RITRESWFHRITHEHA RIS - 25
EREFRFAEEZARRSFL - UN
FIREIEA 2 BRIEH - WiRAR 2 G 8
EHERANEROAE - BE RRITERER
ITHEE ARG A E BRI ZIRTT

REZR - UARE(TAREDEZTH
TR RekRSEEWA119,685,00078 7T
(=—Z—PU4F : 149,306,000/ 7C) ° ARELR
AEmABAEHMER - B2 - REPEZI
PEE IR (M R ALEE - SEERMNESEMRTE - A
EEEES BEREETINEERS Z BITEBA
REHBAEMER o
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 30 ENEZRIREE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at REEH  HEEARAEZENE SRR K
the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as SRR ONTT
follows:

2015 2014
—E-—RF —E—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
Trade payables: FERTE S8R -
1-3 months 123188 98,048 92,822
4-6 months 4% 618 A8 35,176 45,809
7—-12 months 7E21218 A 1,239 5,693
Over 1 year BiE14F 8,197 8,698
142,660 153,022
Bills payables FERZEE 49,126 15,185
191,786 168,207
31 BANK LOANS 31 #HRITEX
At 31 December
R+=B=+—H
2015 2014
—E-RHEF —E—ME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FH&T
Analysed into: AT
Bank loans, unsecured, repayable: RATHREEEZ
EIKIRIRITE R -
Within one year or on demand —FERNILRENR 505,477 505,646
In the second year F-ER 262,970 269,572
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=EENF(BEME
BIEER)
45,128 82,647
813,575 857,865
Portion classified as current liabilities SRR ATREREID (505,477) (505,646)
Non-current portion IR ENED 308,098 352,219
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As at 31 December 2015, unsecured bank loans of the
Group denominated in HK dollars and United States dollars
amounted to HK$686,833,000 (2014: HK$758,502,000)
and HK$132,780,000 (2014: HK$99,363,000) respectively.
The weighted average interest rate of the unsecured
bank loans was 2.59% (2014: 2.78%) per annum. All
bank loans bear floating interest rates and are repayable
by instalments up to 2016. The carrying amounts of the
Group's bank loans approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015, bank loans with current portion
and non-current portion amounted to HK$505,477,000
and HK$308,098,000 , respectively. Man Yue Technology
Holdings Limited is required, to comply with certain
restrictive financial covenants, including, inter alia, interest
coverage ratios, net debt to EBITDA ratios and finance
charge to EBITDA ratios. At 31 December 2015, the Group
failed to comply with certain covenants mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had already obtained
waiver letters from the lenders from complying with the
relevant covenant in relation to the outstanding bank loan
of HK$813,575,000.

RZE—RF+-RA=+—H KxEEU
BLTRETEZEEBRRITERD B A
686,833,000/ 7 ( —Z —PU4F : 758,502,000
75 7T ) & 132,780,000 T ( =& — Y £
99,363,000/ 7T ) ° ZEMMIFRITER 2
NREFE I ER|R 52 59E ( ZF—M4E : 2.78
[B) - FIARTERFZESFIRTE - WA
REZZ—NFLARI D HEE - REBIBITER
ZEEEeREEARERES

R-EBE—FE+-_A=+—H £ITIEFZ
BVERE8 75 B2 3E BN B3 #0 45 Bl) A3 505,477,0007% 7T
308,098,000 7T - EMEFEEBFRA
RIAESTE TRAENBFRE  2E(H4be
F)FEEER  FEFEEBITDALL = LA R HF
B HEBITDALL R - R=ZT—HF+ A
=+—8 ' AEERFEET EE T o

RZE—AF+_A=1+—08  "EEE K
BB R 1TE X813,575,0005% 7T B A A U 2

A TR 2 K o
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32 DEFERRED TAX 32 EERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FERZEEFHELAERBEZEENT -
the year were as follows:

Deferred tax assets BELEMREEE
Losses
available for
Provisions  offsetting
for trade against
receivables future
and taxable
inventories profits Others
AR
HEEHAR
EREZRR  ERHER
REERE ZE#E Hith @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET THT TR THER
Gross deferred tax assets RZZT—mF—F—H
at 1 January 2014 ZERFREERE 126 7,140 3,141 10,407
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to FARGERGER
the consolidated income statement (k%) /G A ZEIEFDA
during the year (Note 14) (Hiit14) (38) 6,773 (334) 6,401
Exchange realignment B 0 A2 - 6 - 6
Gross deferred tax assets RZE-NF+=-F=1+—H
at 31 December 2014 and k—E-h%—H—H
1 January 2015 ZERFIBAESE 88 13,919 2,807 16,814
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) to ERRGARERTA
the consolidated income statement (3088 ) ZIRIER A
during the year (Note 14) (Hizt14) 34 (1,729) (134) (1,829)
Exchange realignment [EH A% - (654) - (654)
Gross deferred tax assets R-E-RF+-A=+—H
at 31 December 2015 JERERIEAESE 122 11,536 2,673 14,331
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32 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32 EEMIE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities EESEAE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
Revaluation of related
of properties  depreciation Total
EEAEZ
EftYE BERERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEx TExT
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—mFE—HF—H
at 1 January 2014 ZELRBEERE 19,447 1,458 20,905
Deferred tax credited to the FAREGRERERETA
consolidated income statement ZIERTRIE (M7 14)
during the year (Note 14) 5,994 116 6,110
Acquisition of a subsidiary B —FEMI B A E) 5,898 - 5,898
Deferred tax debited to equity during ~ EE L+ REFmAES
the year arising on revaluation of FRNERNRZ
land and buildings (Note 14) BERTE(H7214) 1,625 - 1,625
Exchange realignment i 5 A% (13) - (13)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZE—ME+=A=+—H
31 December 2014 and k=Z—RF—A—H
1 January 2015 ZIEIENIA S (G5 32,951 1,574 34,525
Deferred tax credited to the FRARERA R R
consolidated income statement ZIERERIIE (M5t 14)
during the year (Note 14) - (333) (333)
Deferred tax debited to equity during  E&Ef4 it RIEFMESE
the year arising on revaluation of FRREZNGRZ
land and buildings (Note 14) BRI (HI7E14) 3,337 = 3,337
Exchange realignment TE 5 A% (1,639) - (1,639)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R_E-—HFE+-A=1+—H
at 31 December 2015 ZIERRIEBEETE 34,649 1,241 35,890
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32 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32
For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

IERER IR ()

WEREERBRME - FTELHBEEER
BECHIRE - SEMBRERE - ARER
IETRIARE SR DATANTS

154

2015 2014
—E-RF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised NG EEABRTER
in the consolidated balance sheet IR IEEERE 13,396 15,862
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RirABEBBERTPER
in the consolidated balance sheet ZIEEFIE R &R (34,955) (33,573)
(21,559) (17,711)

The Group had unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$53,180,000 (2014: HK$22,938,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC
of HK$116,931,000 (2014: HK$67,648,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits. The Group has tax losses not recognised
amounted to HK$170,111,000 (2014: HK$90,586,000).
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised amounted
to HK$38,007,000 (2014: HK$20,697,000) in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets of HK$11,536,000 has been recognised
in respect of tax losses as of 31 December 2015 which the
Group would utilise through proper business planning in
the coming years.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Bi#ARH:EBEAER A A

REBERREBZABRBNBEEE
53,180,0007% 7T (=& — P4 : 22,938,000/8
J0) ¢ AR B IR HIREEZ AR 2R
RAERTLE T o AE B IRA RN B 2 K
A8 116,931,000 7T ( — F — DU 4F ¢
67,648,000/ 7C) * RN —ERFRNEM -
Al A AR SE AR R FE R B am Fl| o RSB AR
AR IEETE 170,111,000 7T ( = F — U 4F -
90,586,000 7T) - BN ZF BB NELERE
£ —BERERSSEE ZHE AR BB ER
T A A AR INZ SRS EB 2T
K MR EEEERZECEHBEER
38,007,000/ 7L ( == —PU4F : 20,697,000/
JT) °

ER-ZT—AF+-A=t+—BatFHEEERE
RIRFEFTEEE 11,536,000/ 7T @ NERBR
RRFEBBEE EBTEER -
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Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate ranges from 5% to 10%. As at 31 December
2015, the Group has unremitted earnings amounted to
approximately HK$179,106,000 (2014: HK$171,498,000).
The corresponding deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised, given that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future because of the Group’s funding
plan of its PRC expansion.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its equity
holders.

Deferred income represented the fair value of the land at
the date of acquisition less the total consideration paid by
the Group. The purpose of the subsidies is for industrial
development in these areas.

The deferred income amounting to HK$ 11,635,000 (2014
HK$12,690,000) of non-cash subsidies in relation to
parcels of land located in Wuxi was granted by the Jiangsu
Province Xishan Economic Development Management
Committee in 2004. The subsidy was in the form of a
reduction of the consideration for the acquisition of a
parcel of land in Wuxi, the PRC, paid by the Group.

RBEPEMEMEEE - RPBIK 2 NE R
EABIMEEEET IR ZREBEBKI10% 2T
it - RERETE-_ZETNF—A—HR4E
BoEARZEEEF T A=+ —HUEE
A2 BRI o fiwFh B BN & A BT Rl AR
2B BB EERER® - BITRSREENT
KT AKEME - BABRENTS5%E
10% - R—FE—RHF+-_A=+—8 &%
B 2 RIEE Z R4 A179,106,000/8 L ( = F
—PO4F ¢ 171,498,000 7T ) ° BB ANA A BE
22 | B B B |t 22 BB FRE ) B B AR SR B A AR
BRREB BT EFE TR IEEENA B
RAJge TR - I AERE MELETHIES

& e

ARR]AEBER A AFL Z BB IRBAR
NAEH -

RFEU AFE5% T AU EE B Bl 2 AR ERAE
B2 BRE - BEEB Y AR &S E
ETHER -

11,635,000 7t ( ==& — P 4 : 12,690,000
BT ZRIEW A BESH Z IR 2 FFR S
By ATHEHIIREREREEZEGN
TEERL - B TZEFMBZ A RRUA
SERYE BN BRES 2 LMz
RE -
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34 SHARE CAPITAL 34

Ordinary shares EZER

Issued and fully paid: BT
476,239,534 (2014: 479,239,534)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 479,239,534% ) G IR EE

0.108 T2 BB

476,239,534% ( —Z— U4

2015
—E—hHF

2014
—E—QmF
HK$°000
FHET

HKS$'000
TET

47,624 47,924

A summary of the transactions involving the Company’s
share capital is as follows:

WRARBBAZZHENT

Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
BRITRG
£ ] BRITRA R RER @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR TET
At 1 January 2014, and RZZE-ME-A-BR
31 December 2014 “E-ME+-A=1+—H 479,239,534 47,924 168,158 216,082
Re-purchase of shares BEERH (3,000,000) (300) (2,296) (2,596)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+-F=+—H 476,239,534 47,624 165,862 213,486
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On 26 May 2006, the Company adopted the Share
Option Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible persons, including employees,
directors and other persons as specified under the scheme
document, who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 26 May
2006 and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares from time to time provided that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of issued
shares on 26 May 2006.

Each grant of the share options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, under the Share Option
Scheme must comply with the requirements of rule 17.04
of the Listing Rules and must be subject to approval
of the independent non-executive directors to whom
share options have not been granted. In addition, any
grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share options
already granted and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue and with an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million, is subject to prior approval from
shareholders in a general meeting.

RZZBTRFAA-T7NE  AREHRMA—IA
BRIERTE - §EREAKEZRINELEH
BRIZEERALT(BEAEIXHIIAZE
8 EENAEMAL)RHEER RO

BREGTEIN — T RFRA - T NBRBE
A% B EEEH 05 HAFR AR R

EATERAR R AR ST B AN A BME (T A At BB AR
R EIR BB RITEE 2 AT AR TE AR
A TFRITZRMHEBBE - & HRETEBAT
B D BTRMD A Z30% @ HERITERERE
RAERT Bl R AN B fr] EL A B AR A = T B S 1
ZFTARBREM A BT 2 RIDBE - & ETE
HBE—EEANFRA - NBEETROAH
210% °

RIRERET B BAAARAES FSITH
ABSEBRRESME 2 BB AR EER
EARA EHRAIE17.04E 2 B EL ALK
BERBERRE 2 B IEITESIE - 350 - 4
MARBEBRRKBIIERITERRBEEZ
BB AR L BRE  SEREEZEEAR
H(eEZR) T EABMAETEZALEE
BREER 2 A ERET B 2T RS T 81T
Z RN FBBANA R B BTN B ER0.1% R 4&
{E (BB 385,000,000/ 7T + BIZEEER R AR
RAE EEuHtE -
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35

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the Directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer, and
(iii) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer of the share options, which must be a trading day.

The Group did not recognise any share option expense for
both years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015. Previous
year expense of HK$407,000 (2014: Nil) was reversed in
the Year for forfeited share option in the consolidated
income statement.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

At 1 January R—A—H
Exercised during the year FN{THE
Forfeited during the year FREKE

At 31 December R+=ZA=1+—~H

35

BT 8 ()

RAEZ /TIEEREEEE - ETSER TS
SERZEEE  (VADRRNEE (VAR
RARHREEEHEN BN AERS AR
e RRERMARZ THRMHE - Rii)AA
ARPHIBRIEE X B H(LEARS B IR
P8 R RERFAELZ T E -

RBE_Z—NER-_E—FHE+=-_A=1+—
HIERESEE - AN5 BB R AR iR
¥ RAFE  BREREBRERGESK
kPR E AT FE R 407,000 (=%
—PU4F : £E) o

RER - BIRESTEIT 2 RETTREREN
T

2015 2014
ZZ-RF —T-mF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
R I
TEE BREHE TRE BEREHE
2206 2,960,000 2.187 3,110,000
- - 1.821 (150,000)
2.262 (430,000) - -
2,196 2,530,000 2206 2,960,000
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36

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Exercise period’

TR

8-8-2007 to 25-5-2016 —ZEELENANRE

—E—-XRFRA=-+HH

15-9-2011 to 14-9-2020 —E——FNA+HHZE
—E-ZFAA+MA
“E-——_FNAA+HRHZE

—E-TFNA A

15-9-2012 to 14-9-2020

35

Exercise price?
HKS$ per share

MBS RESTEI(4])
REER - KBTI (518 R AT
T

Number of options

2015 2014

TRE’ BRERE
BRET —E-—AF —T—mE
1.6 250,000 250,000
2.262 1,146,000 1,364,000
2.262 1,134,000 1,346,000
2,530,000 2,960,000

The vesting period of the share options is from the date
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

At 31 December 2015, the Company had 2,530,000 (2014:
2,960,000) share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 2,530,000 (2014: 2,960,000)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$253,000 (2014: HK$296,000) and
share premium of approximately HK$5,304,000 (2014:
HK$6,234,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 2,530,000 (2014: 2,960,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.53% (2014: 0.62%) of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company provides guarantees to the extent of
HK$3,884,791,000 (2014: HK$3,574,791,000) in respect
of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries, and
approximately HK$738,237,000 (2014: HK$831,068,000)
of which was utilised at the balance sheet date.

36

! BEEzRBHDER L RHEERTE
HARLA -

~

BEEZTERELSRERRAT T
HARBBA 2 b S FHEE -

R-ZZE—FRE+-A=+—8 " A2 AE
% #E 5t 2 N A 2,530,000 ( — & — PO 4F ¢
2,960,00017 ) RIETT{E 2 BEAR#E - BIRAA T
Rl BAGEE BB Z SRR
#£172,530,000173 (=ZZ—PH4F : 2,960,00017)
ANQ R RESNE AR T EE A REYNIR AN 253,000/%8
JTo(=—Z—PU4 : 296,000/ 7T ) M AH B4
5,304,000 70 ( —Z—PU4F : 6,234,000/ 7T)
(RINBREEITHAZ) ©

PEDELSHHREER - AR aERAEE
T742,530,00017 (=Z—PI4F : 2,960,00017)
REITE 2 FERRAE - B A RARINZBERTT
f&1920.53% (=ZF—P4F : 0.62%) °

AEER

ARG REEARE TEWRB QR Z2HRT
BB 1EH A #3,884,791,00058 7L ( —Z — Y
& 1 3,574,791,000 8 7T ) 2 IR - HAF L
738,237,000/% 71 (= Z —PU4F : 831,068,000
BIT) BB ©
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37 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties, factory
premises, and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for office properties, factory
premises, and warehouses are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to twenty years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

—FRN

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_EZFhF(BREERF) o

REMENTHE

EREEA
AEERBEEROLRFHREETHRAE
¥ IBRWERER - WAEWE  THDE
MERHAME BB R—E_+FI T -

RZZE—FAFE+-A=+—8  KXEEHEET
AIEH S TR NI IR B 2 R k&
KRS ERENT

2015 2014
—E-REF —ET—MF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FTET
12,974 15,810
2,578

12,974 18,388

As lessor

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

EREEA

RZBE-—AF+-A=+—H ' AEEREDT
AR S AR T 51 HRR 2 B R 2 R R B
EEES LN

2015
—E-RE

HK$'000
FTHET

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

E_ZFhF(RREEERF)

3,927 2,402
1,894 245

5,821 2,647

38 COMMITMENTS 38
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in Note 37 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the balance sheet date:

i
B EXXHIEE37 AR 2 AR E A ASESD - K
SENGEERBUTEARRE

Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEES T
Plant and machinery = Nt es
Buildings ¥
Land + i

2015
—E-RE
HK$°000
FEx
18,473 60,031
697 740
1,217 1,292
20,387 62,063
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39

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2015, Man Yue Holdings Inc. had
a 44.09% equity interest in the Company as the single
largest shareholder. The ultimate controlling party of the
Company is Ms. Kee Chor Lin, a director of the Company.

(@

()

In addition to the transactions detailed in Note 11,
the Group had the following material transactions
with its joint ventures and the associate:

39

BEALRS
R-ZZE—FE+=ZA=+—H ' Man Yue
Holdings Inc. LA 8 — & AR ER & FF 8 A Q&
44.09% B AHERS o NARZRIKIEBALH
RARESLBELL -

@ BHENFRZRZIN AEEEE
BECERBMERBZEARZWT

2015 2014
—E-REF —E—ME
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FHET FHBxT
Joint ventures: AETHE

Purchases of raw materials EEEMR (i) 38,641 48,885
Rental expenses ez (ii) 14,912 15,149
Interest income received SALEIIEN PN (i) 4,546 4,560

An associate: —RE & AT -
Sales of raw materials HEREME () 8,926 61,653
Sales of finished goods HERK SR (i) 6,410 12,386
Purchase of finished goods EE RS 0] = 1,678

Notes: Bz -

0]

(ii)

(iii)

The above purchases and sales of raw materials
and finished goods were determined on the basis
agreed by both parties and were conducted in
the normal course of business.

The rental was charged at rates with mark-to-
market yield.

The interest was charged at a rate of 6.15%
(2014: 6.15%) per annum.

Remuneration for key management personnel is
set out in Notes 12 and 13 of the consolidated
financial statements.

The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from
and due to joint ventures, and amount due from
an associate are set out in Notes 23 and 24 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

0] RS E R R R B R T
BRI RIETT e < R » WX
ERXBBIEHET -

(ii) HETREIRHEZ LLRAFE

(iii) B TIREF6ISE(ZZT—N
F:6.15FE) 2 EKHE -

(b) FEEEAB ZHMWNE AR E M 53R
REFFF128%13 °

(© BT—HAEECEZER  BRKE
& D5 7 ZRIE DA K e U — s Bt
NEZFBHNAEE 276 5 H
KMFEE23 %24 -
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40

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2015

Assets as per balance sheet

Available-for-sale investments

Loans to a joint venture

Due from joint ventures

Due from an associate

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Time deposits over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Bank loans

Derivative financial instruments

Due to joint ventures

Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Dividends payable

40 REREISZERMTIA
—E-hF
Assets at
fair value
through
Loansand  the profit  Available-
receivables and loss for-sale Total
EXR HAREERA
BRFHE WakzEE AHHE ‘st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THET
BEERBRMTEE
A HERE - - 12,701 12,701
LT HEErEZER 96,989 - - 96,989
Bl E &5 2 I8 34,438 - - 34,438
FEN — S AR 2 5IE 3,651 - - 3,651
FEIE SRR R E A e
FETREENTE) 385,895 = = 385,895
AR B ARER
ZEREBE - 51 - 51
=R EZ EBFR 11,936 - - 11,936
BeRRLEEYD 347,797 - - 347,797
880,706 51 12,701 893,458
Liabilities Other
at fair value financial
through the liabilities at
profit and loss amortised cost Total
BARERA  RESEEARER
hHRvafE ZHtemEE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAET TET
BESBERMTAE
FITER - 813,575 813,575
PTHEEmMIA 15,764 - 15,764
g R A - 19,780 19,780
e B S IR R E B FIE
(TREFERER) - 255,516 255,516
ERIRE - 43 43
15,764 1,088,914 1,104,678
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40

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

2014

Assets as per balance sheet

Available-for-sale investments

Loans to a joint venture

Due from joint ventures

Due from an associate

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Time deposits over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

BERBRATEE
AHRHERE
RT-HaELEZERK
YA ERR IR
M — RIS AR ZF0R
FEUE SRR R LRI
FE(TBRERNFR)
ARAERARER
ZEREE
=EANREZEREH
RAeRREFEY

40 RERHEsZERMIAE)

—T—JuF

Assets at
fair value
through

Loans and
receivables
ik
FEIIR
HK$'000
TAT

AR

Yoz

the profit
and loss

HK$'000

Available-
for-sale

(EEIZN
ZBE AfHE
HK$°000
THET

TET

Total

w3t
HK$'000
T

- - 13,881 13,881
102,760 - - 102,760
38,305 - - 38,305
38,431 - - 38,431
371,106 - - 371,106
- 59 - 59
12,676 - - 12,676
400,839 - - 400,839
964,117 59 13,881 978,057

Liabilities as per balance sheet

Bank loans

Derivative financial instruments

Due to joint ventures

Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Dividends payable

BEEERATAR
BITER
PTHESBTA
ENAENEZFUE

Liabilities
at fair value
through the

profit and loss

DUNIEEZN
WamkzaE
HK$'000
TART

BNESET LA MR TE

(TREFERER)
RS

Other

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TRE SR AT R
ZEMERBE
HK$'000
THET

Total

et
HK$'000
FHT

- 857,865 857,865
16,838 - 16,838
- 20,339 20,339
- 232,904 232,904
- 41 41
16,838 1,111,149 1,127,987
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BAFE R AR ML (AR)

The Group has certain financial instruments, including
bank loans and cash and short term deposits, of which
main purpose is to fund the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from
the Group's operations and its sources of finance. These
forward currency contracts are not qualified as hedging for
accounting purposes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar and
it conducts some of its business transactions in other
transactional currencies such as United States dollar and
Japanese Yen. Some of its sales proceeds were received
in United States dollar and some of the purchases are
conducted in Japanese Yen, Renminbi and United States
dollar. As the United States dollar is closely pegged with
Hong Kong dollar throughout the year under review,
so the currency exposure in this respect is considered
not significant. About 73% (2014: 67%) of the Group's
expenditures are denominated in Renminbi. The impacts
of Renminbi appreciation are alleviated by sales proceeds
as about 43% (2014: 40%) of the Group’s sales receipts
are denominated in Renminbi. About 13% (2014: 5%) of
the Group’s purchases are denominated in Japanese Yen.
Accordingly, the Group uses forward currency contracts to
mitigate a proportion of its Japanese Yen exposures with
reference to the cash flow forecasts. The Group does not
speculate on foreign currencies.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI EEER A E

AEBEETERTA(BRRITERNARE
RERER) TRENNAREEZER
RHEES - AEEAZREMEREENAR
(N E SRS RENESERARER)IE
BRRBHESE

AEETTAEERER AL BNREEARE
BEB MM BERMELE 2 EERR - BLEF
BNmE  EMEBSOTHAERIERY
e

XEAKESRTAZ T ZERSINERR -
MERER  RBEEERREERR EFE
Tt i e E IR BEER ZBUR - W XHR
it - NEBARBITAT A St HERERGA
PATEAR M3 -

ShEE R B

REENETAZHEY  WHHMRZEE
METKR BEETHNEBRRS - EEHHEE
FT{SFEUEAZE TIRER - mERHOFEELAAE - A
RERETET - AEFERNETLBTZ
BtEER —FHERIRTE - AE A EZINER
BRI REXN « REBZEFRLT73%(ZE—T
F:67%)AARBEE - HRAKE ZHE
WAF#43% (ZF—0F : 40%) AARKE
HEE - BUHERSHIESET ARBAEZE
2o REBZHEBERNI3%(ZF—MLF
5%)ABEEE - Bt - AEEREESR
S0 - RARPEBS LR D B ERR
EIE o ANEENEDEINE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change
on translation of Japanese Yen denominated cash and
bank balance and trade and bills payables and Renminbi
denominated cash and bank balance, trade receivables
and trade and bills payables, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax.

B E e E IR B AR R BUR ()

Shs LR (4K)
TRITAEER - EFfAEMSBIRSTE
ZIERT - AEEBRBATENLIAE AE G
RERRITER  EEIEIRARRERAR
WA ERS RRITHES  EREIERUAR
AT B 2 BRk R IR AT BE R R A TR B 2 U
1 o

Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase
in Japanese in result
Yen rate before tax
H B E = EXIRIES
EFH(TEE) (R4,
% HK$'000
Bkt FH&xT
2015 —E-h%F
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened AT B EIE = T pE
against Japanese Yen 5 (645)
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened 87T B EER F7t
against Japanese Yen (5) 645
2014 —ZT—F
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened B TE BEERTRE
against Japanese Yen 5 (380)
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened WE T BEEXR A
against Japanese Yen (5) 380

Increase/

Increase/
(decrease)
in RMB rate
ARME=R
EH(TK)
%
Aok
2015 —E-—HE
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened AT A REER TG
against RMB 5
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened AT AREESR 7+
against RMB (5)
2014 —E P4
If Hong Kong dollar had weakened AT AREER T E
against RMB 5
If Hong Kong dollar had strengthened HWETHARKER FFH
against RMB (5)

(decrease)
in result
before tax
CEIE
#hn,/GRd)
HK$'000
FET

1,385

(1,385)

529

(529)
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41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to their bank loan obligations
with floating interest rates. To manage any exposure
arising from the changes in market interest rates, the
Group enters into interest rate swap, in which the Group
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference
between fixed and variable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional
principal amount. This interest rate swap is not qualified as
hedging for accounting purposes.

2015 —E-Ff
Hong Kong dollar BIT
Us dollar ETT
Hong Kong dollar BT
US dollar EVid

41

MR REREERRERBKR(E)

BRI
AEEFEY MEMNEESHER T BBV
BT RFEZRITEREL - REEMBSHEX

%) o Bt - ARBIHBRNEEEMRIGRESE
BELBBEACBAEMTLEELEIETHE
ZER - ERBEMME - MEREHEHOTA
BERIELH o

(Decrease)/

Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in result
basis points before tax

B-8 BRBLATSEAR
2, (Rd) (M2, #&hn

HK$'000
FTHET
100 (6,808)
100 (1,328)
(100) 6,808
(100) 1,328

2014 —Z—mF
Hong Kong dollar BT
US dollar EViH
Hong Kong dollar BIT
Us dollar EIT

(Decrease)/

Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in result
basis points before tax

% BB
s/ GRD) (R
HK$'000

FHT

100 (7,585)
100 (994)
(100) 7,585
(100) 994
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41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due.
The Group's objective is to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and
to maintain contingency plan for funding to ensure that
the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Due to joint ventures [Ef&EME TR
Trade and bills payables ERESERRER
Other payables and accrued liabilities HitbEfERETaE
Derivative financial instruments fTHEERTIA

Bank loans RITER

Dividends payable FERT AR S

41

MsE kR EE R ERBR (&)

mBE T RBRIEREMSE S NEMNFAEEH
ZARFEEERR - AEE 2 BERREE
BZHMBERE  #ERRRBEEZABDESL
o WREESEDE  BERAEEAGBE
WRENENERBESHFE -

REER - AEERBSORERNRAEZ
TREEIHBERET

2015
—E-8F

Within 1 year
or on demand Over 1 year Total
—FRFRER BB—F @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET TET
19,780 - 19,780
191,786 - 191,786
63,730 - 63,730
5,040 10,724 15,764
523,129 317,899 841,028
43 - 43
803,508 328,623 1,132,131
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41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

B e E TR B AR R BUR ()

REBE SRR (&)

2014
—E-E

Within 1 year
or on demand Over 1 year Total
—FRIRER B —4F FeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET
Due to joint ventures AL 7HIA 20,339 - 20,339
Trade and bills payables ENESETNER 168,207 - 168,207
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hih R RES AR 64,697 - 64,697
Derivative financial instruments fTESRIA 5,631 11,207 16,838
Bank loans RITER 522,673 362,221 884,894
Dividends payable FERTRR B, 41 - 41
781,588 373,428 1,155,016

Credit risk FERRE

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty
to transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its obligation
thereby incurring financial loss to the Group. The Group
manages the credit risk by setting up a team responsible
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group
has entered into credit insurance contracts with the Hong
Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation and other
financial institutions to mitigate the credit risk arising from
the receivable balances.

In addition, it is the Group’s policy to review regularly
the recoverable amount of trade receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment provisions are made against
the irrecoverable amounts. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED Bi#ARH:EBEAER A A

32 5 %177 Al BE NEE KT BEFB 1T R AE S B
SEASPBHIRKRE - EoIBEERR - K&
EEmRY —AEKAEEEEERE it
EENAREMETEF - EERRIRET
FLNmBRES  EREERR - NEEH
FELOERARRERECEREBIILIER
REREH) - URIEZR B KRR 2 EE R

B o

LS ANER B2 BUR 2 TE HARR B W 5 AR AR
ZAWEI SR - AR A RRE S BEL R
SRMERE - ERAEE 2 RKRE SEREP
EWEZ SRS EESRITE - BUrEEX
SHEERR -

AEBREKE SRR B EERR 2 E—
FECERHER RS SRR TE26 ©
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41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The
Group prices its products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and secures access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and strives to maintain a balance
between high shareholder returns that might be possible
with high levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in the light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt to capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as interest-bearing debt (which includes
bank loans), less cash and cash equivalents.

During 2015, the Group's strategy is to strengthen the net
debt to equity ratio compared to 2014, at the lower end of
the range of 20% to 30%. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

41

MsE kR EE R ERBR (&)

gBxEE
AKEAREE, £ 2B B ARRAREE
NSRRI LEWE - BRARTAE
B3R A R RS H A A ARI3S AR
AT AR R R EAREARRA
BEBHA -

AEBEBEGNERHEREBETRIRE
B AR AR BE S A EK T 2 2 BAR
O R 4F 2 B A R 2 B S AR R 2
2 W REEERR 2 B E AR EBIE

AEENEEFEHBRAL R ERERALER
REBZERE - Bt E - AREBEEFRR
ERFTEEE(RFERITER)  BREERS
FEW -

REZZ—RF  AERBE R REREE TR
BHEZR L R 20% E30% 2 8 2 BAR K F (£2
ZE—NFAEL) o ARIFKFAREEMLE
AEBERSARMBRIRN ZRESEE - BT
R - RERATIRE BEEHEFRENR
HEBENREERE -

2015 2014

—E-RF —E—NE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Bank loans RITE 813,575 857,865

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIRSEEY (347,797) (400,839)

Less: Time deposits over 3 months S =B A E 2 EEATERR (11,936) (12,676)

Net debt EEF58 453,842 444,350
Equity attributable to equity holders of  ZR2 FIR KRB A E(LHERS

the Company 1,391,978 1,563,854

Net debt to capital ratio BB F AR AL X 32.6% 28.4%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

ARBREEAME ARG TRINIEEZ B
AIER S -
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41 BIXERESHEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation A REME

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurement by BN BmELNETHRER TR B

level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy: EERNERELAAENS ¢

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o HRIEESKBEEETRMSZHRECK
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). KRB (E—E) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within . BTE—RBREEZREN  ZEE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, SEECAERGAZRE  AJAEE
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, (BnanfEHE ) sk (BURB B8 ) 2 &
derived from prices) (level 2). B(EZRE) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based . BER B G IR B R 5 EUE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable 2 8 A\ EE (BNIE R B R g A B ) (58
inputs) (level 3). =) -

The following table presents the Group's financial TREFNAEEREL B AGBEERA BT

instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method, at BRZ&mIA -

year end.

2015 —E-EF

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E £ F=E @t

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET

Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE - - 12,701 12,701
Financial assets at fair value MAR B ARER

through profit or loss LEREE 51 - - 51
Total assets BERE 51 = 12,701 12,752
Liabilities B&
Derivative financial instruments: TTHESRMIA

— Interest rate swap —FlZ AL - 15,764 - 15,764
Total liabilities BlEEE - 15,764 - 15,764
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41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

2014

Assets

Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Total assets

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments:
- Forward exchange contracts

- Interest rate swap

Total liabilities

BE

AHHERE

ARAERARER
ZEREE

BERE

afE

ITESRTA
—EHINERH)
—FRBHEH

41 HREREEEERBER(E)
A RBEMEE(E)
—E—UE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—fE E_E E=E #ct

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TiEr THEx THEx

- - 13,881 13,881

59 - - 59

59 - 13,881 13,940

- 585 - 585

- 16,253 - 16,253

- 16,838 - 16,838

During both years, there were no significant transfers of
financial instruments among level 1, level 2 and level 3.

RREFE £ F_EBRE=EZoR
TAYEERER -
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42 RESERVES 42 {#E
Reserve movement of the Group N2 B B

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AAIRBEEARE

Available-
forsale
Asset investment  Exchange PRC
Share Share Contributed revaluation revaluation fluctuation reserve Other  Retained

premium option surplus’ ~ reserve reserve reserve funds'  reserve profits
HE
HEEfF REEH ENRD
BEEE  BRE  HARH ffe e i TEERES AMRE  REE 3t
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn ThT AT THT THT T#n Tén Tén Tén Tén

Balance at 1 January 2015 R-%-1%-A-H

i 168,158 2932 2,800 72,855 1,049 361,344 55,479 (162) 851475 1,515,930

Loss or the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (500) (45,095
Other comprehensive income: ~— Ep 2EHE -
Asset revaluation surplus, IBHEREE

netof tax EERE = = 5 9,599 5 = = = = 9,599
Change in fai vlue of THHERERLE

avalable-for-sale investments % - - - - 576 - - - - 576
Currency trandlation differences (B 2%

- Group -REE - - - - - (116,59) - - - (116,59)

- Joint ventures -AE0E - - - - - (1.794) - - - (1,794)

- An associate ——BEAT - - - - - (@) - - - (@)

Total comprehensive (oss)income  EZ-E-RE 1A

for the year ended T-ALFRZ
31 D 2015 (5 NiseE : : Y 56 (128161 . - s (164080

Employee share option scheme:  [ESERIE -

- Share option forfeited -BHERRE = (407) - - = = = = = (407)
Share repurchased BEfkhH (2.29) - - - - - - - - (2,296)
Transferred to retained profits ~ EAZREEF - - - - - - 451 - (5)] -

Transferred from retained profits ~ BEENE « FER
due to transfer of property, BAZRENE

plant and machinery to TERERBER
investment properties - - - (5917) - - - - 5917 -
2014 ingl dvidend “E-MERERE = > > > > = = = (4792)  (479)

Balance at 31 December 2015 MZE-RETZA
“t-H2E% 165,862 2,525 2,800 76,531 1,625 232183 55,930 (162) 807,054 1,344,354
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

42

RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Reserve movement of the Group (Continued)

Balance at 1 January 2014

Profitfor the year
Other comprehensive income:
Asset revaluation surplus,
net of tax
Change in fair value of
available-for-sale investments
Currency translation differences
- Group
- Joint ventures
- An associate

Total comprehensive income
for the year ended
31 December 2014

Employee share option scheme:
- Share option exercised
Release of reserve upon
disposal of a subsidiary
Transferred from retained profits
2013 final dividend
2014 interim dividend

2014 proposed final dividend

Balance at 31 December 2014

REZEH
A2ERE:
NEwEREE
BhEk
ARHERELAR
pi )
EXzE
-1%E
-REtk
_7ﬁﬂ ﬂﬁg&

Band

HECE-IETZA
=+-ALEEL
SElseE

BB
-EiTiERE
HE-EHEATH

BhER
ERERBEN
R-DERERE
“E-IERERS

R MERRRERE

RIE-RETZA
i

42

it (&)

ble to equity holders of the C

mE-A-AZ
Available-
forsale
Asset  investment  Exchange
Share Share  Contributed  revaluation revaluation  fluctuation Teserve Other ~ Retained
premium option surplus' Teseve Teserve funds' Teserve profits
AEEH

Bie  #A28 i i RE  RERH

HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000

THT ThT T Tin Tin Tin Tin T Thn
167,707 3,126 2,800 67,779 691 363,087 54,844 157 8331 1483402
- - - - - - - - 8257 43257
- - - 5076 - - - - - 5076
- - - - 35 - - - - 358
- - - - - (6,940) - - - (6,940)
- - - - - (156) - - - (256)
- - - - - 5,653 - - - 5653
- - - 5076 358 (17483) - - 43257 46,948
451 (194) - - - - - - - 257
- - - - - - - B19) - 319
- - - - - - 635 - (635) -
- _ - - - - - - (7,189 (7,189)
- - - - - - - - (7,189 (7,189
168,158 2932 2,800 72,855 1,049 361,344 55479 (162) 81475 1515930
_ _ - - - - - - (4,792) (4,792)
168,158 2932 2,800 72,855 1,049 361,344 55479 (162 846683 1511138

The Group’'s contributed surplus represents the

difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the

Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which

are established in the PRC has been transferred to the
PRC reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

REE 2 HABBIEPTKIEN B AR Z R
D EERL ARBRITE AR ROmETA
RARMNEEZER °

REBHBEAERER AR - ARERHE
Bz HBARGR D BN EBREHE
FRe  HBRAZIIRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M ()

43

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43

OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Due from subsidiaries
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Dividends payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provision for long service payments

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

FRBEE
RIB AR ZIRE
A ERE

JEMENVEEARE

REBEE

FE W BB 2 R 2 OB
IR
RekReFED

mBEERE

REAE

FETF R R Z FIR
HAENRERE AR
FERT RS

mBAERE

FRBEE
RHRG R E

FRBABRE
BEFE

R

A

G

REE & A

ERAE

ARABEEABRERFEEERS
EESER
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E-—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tt
63,901 63,901
3,910 3,678
67,811 67,579
634,761 636,933
2,330 1,803
272 659
637,363 639,395
382,493 355,583
4,960 8,008
43 41
387,496 363,632
- 27
- 27
317,678 343,315
47,624 47,924
270,054 290,599
- 4,792
317,678 343,315
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR BTSRRI ()

43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 43 X AGSEEEBEXEREESSH(E)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Available-

for-sale

investment
Share Share Contributed revaluation  Retained
premium option surplus reserve profits

AitmE

REEf
KiiaE BRE  AARB e REEN At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TiEn TR TiEn

At 1 January 2015 “2-1F-A-H 168,158 2,932 63,623 46 60,632 295,391
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - (18,073)  (18,073)
Change in fair value of AHHERERNLEZE

available-for-sale investments - - - 231 - 231
Employee share option scheme: [EEHRIEE -

- Share options forfeited -EHEBERE = (407) = = = (407)
Re-purchase of shares Rl (2,296) - - - - (2,296)
2014 final dividend “E-MERERE = = = = (4,792) (4,792)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1&E+-A=1-A 165,862 2,525 63,623 277 37,767 270,054
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE¥-A—-H 167,707 3,126 63,623 - 57,910 292,366
Profit for the year KEFRH - - - - 17,100 17,100
Change in fair value of AHEEERERNLEZEE

available-for-sale investments - - - 46 - 46
Employee share option scheme: (EEBRETE

~ Share options exercised —- B iE 451 (194) - - - 257
2013 final dividend —“T-ZERRE - - - - (7,189) (7,189)
2014 interim dividend —“E-MERHEE - - - - (7,189) (7,189)

168,158 2,932 63,623 46 60,632 295,391
2014 proposed final dividend ZE-MERRRSBRE - - - - (4,792) (4,792)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+=f=1—H 168,158 2,932 63,623 46 55,840 290,599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR L ()

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions
to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should
the related options expire or be forfeited.

MAN YUE TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED EiARlH EBEARA 7
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BNEEZER - REBRE-NN\—FRQF
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T F A E

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- AT AAEBBERENRERE 2 EEUREE - 8
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, & MIEEIIERERME - HiEEAD NI EEZ
as extracted from the published audited financial statements is set ~ BAZS#RE °

out below.

Results ES |

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—Z2-0F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRT TET TET TET TET

Revenue WA 974,421 1,186,967 1,322,182 1,391,650 1,540,154
(Loss) /profit before tax BB (ER), A (37,396) 55,996 80,269 98,933 124,674
Tax 1| (8,442) (12,160) (19,438) (20,098) (20,873)
(Loss) /profit for the year REE(BE)HEH (45,838) 43,836 60,831 78,835 103,801
Attributable to: TFIEIEREL -
Equity holders of the Company ~ RARIRIERE A A (45,095) 43,257 61,021 79,875 103,965
Non-controlling interests JEIR AR AR SR M 2 (743) 579 (190) (1,040) (164)
(45,838) 43,836 60,831 78,835 103,801
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE - AERFERBRRER

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1fF | T-WFE =T =T & = —&

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TERT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Total assets BERBE 2,553,022 2,749,435 2,778,270 2,921,938 2,896,969
Total liabilities aBEeE (1,156,762) (1,180,290) (1,239,528) (1,490,332) (1,542,648)
Non-controlling interests FEERR AR B (4,282) (5,291) (7,411) (4,905) (3,990)

1,391,978 1,563,854 1,531,331 1,426,701 1,350,331
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GLOSSARY
IR

Annual Report

F

Audit Committee
BEZELZEE

Board
e

Board Diversity Policy
EEE LU CEER

Bye-laws
RAEIAA

Company

RN

Company Secretary
NAEME

Director(s)

=

EBITDA
EBITDA

E-Caps

EDLC

ED(s)
WITES

annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_Z-—AFT_A=+—HUIEMBRFEZFERE

audit committee of the Company

ARRZEBZERE®

the board of directors of the Company
RRRIZESFS

board diversity policy of the Company
KRR ZEFELTTLEER

bye-laws of the Company
/NS AN El

Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
BRI REEAR AR

company secretary of the Company
RRBZ ARIME

director(s) of the Company

ARBZES

earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation

REMBSH -~ BIB - B R ER AT

Aluminum Electrolytic Capacitors
IREREARE

Electric Double Layer Capacitors
EEEERSE

executive director(s) of the Company

ARRZHITES
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Glossary (Continued)

R (&)

ESS Energy Storage System

BEEHIF RS 2T RS

Group Company and its subsidiaries

REH KRR REKMBRR

HK Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

HE PEREFBRRITTERE

INED(s) independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

BUFRITESR RATZ BN TES

ISO International Organization for Standartization

BUFR IR L 4B 4 BIFRIE A L AE A

Listing Rules Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

AR Al ERMERXGMERARIESF EHRA

MLPC Multi-layer Polymer Capacitors

BRAES FTEEERR BERAEH TREEESSR

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

RAESF A IHETAESHEITESF R ZHIRESTA

Nomination Committee nomination committee of the Company

REEEE RRAZIREEER

Polymer Caps Conductive Polymer Aluminum Solid Capacitors

EBNTFEAR BERD TREEEERNRSE

PRC People’s Republic of China

H I AR AME

Remuneration Committee remuneration committee of the Company

FEEE RRFZHMEER

I o s " . a - E o P I 3 e M
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Glossary (Continued)
FR (&)

R&D
s

SFO
&7 R B )

Share Option Scheme
ERiERTE

Stock Exchange
632 P

Year

REE

HK$
BT

%
%

research and development
70 R Al 8

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BHREIE D (BEANDIZE571%)

share option scheme adopted by the Company on 26 May 2006 and revised
on 27 May 2010

RAABRZZEZRFAAZ T NEBEATR T —TFAA - +HHETZER
HE=TE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERAMERXGHERAT]

financial year ended 31 December 2015

BE_ZT—RF+-A=+—HBIVBEE

Hong Kong dollar
AT

per cent
ERiy:d

sl _—
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